
This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters 
discussed during Agenda Item #6 – Special Presentations and Reports. If a member of the public wishes to speak at 
this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

This public comment period provides an opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters of 
interest within the jurisdiction of the District that are not listed on the agenda.  If a member of the public wishes to speak 
at this time, Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Notice of Regular Meeting 
Oceano Community Services District - Board of Directors Agenda 

WEDNESDAY, April 12, 2017 – 5:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

All items on the agenda including information items, may be deliberated. Any member of the public with an interest in 
one of these items should review the background material and request information on the possible action that could 
be taken. 

All persons desiring to speak during any Public Comment period are asked to fill out a “Board Appearance Form” to 
submit to the General Manager prior to the start of the meeting. Each individual speaker is limited to a presentation 
time of THREE (3) minutes per item. Persons wishing to speak on more than one item shall limit his/her remarks to a 
total of SIX (6) minutes. This time may be allocated between items in one minute increments up to three minutes. 
Time limits may not be yielded to or shared with other speakers. 

1. CALL TO ORDER:

2. ROLL CALL:

3. FLAG SALUTE:

4. AGENDA REVIEW:

5. CLOSED SESSION:
A. Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiators. Agency designated 

representative: General Manager, Paavo Ogren, Legal Counsel, Jeff Minnery; Employee 
Organizations: a) Service Employees International Union 620 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA: (NOT BEGINNING BEFORE 6:00 PM)

7. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:

A. STAFF REPORTS: 

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino

ii. FCFA Operations - Chief Steve Lieberman

iii. OCSD General Manager

iv. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Stuart MacDonald OCSD

B. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

i. Director Angello

ii. Director Brunet

iii. President White

iv. Vice President Austin

v. Director Coalwell

C. PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 

April 12, 2017 - Page 1 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 
Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on consent agenda items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

Public comment Members of the public wishing to speak on public hearing items may do so when 
recognized by the Presiding Officer.  To facilitate public comment we request persons wishing to speak to fill out a 
speak request form and give it to the General Manager.  Public comment is limited to three (3) minutes. 

8. CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS: 

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on March 8, 2017 
 

B. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 
 

C. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Robert Dorazio; 2140 Beach; Assessor’s Parcel No. 
062-116-025 

 
D. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Tyler & Krysta Seals; 1376 21st Street; Assessor’s 

Parcel No. 062-261-023 
 

E. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Donavan Veira; Lot 21 corner of Tamera & 23rd 
Street; Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-023-043 

 
F. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Larry Moles; 311 Juanita; Assessor’s Parcel No. 

061-021-051 
 

G. Approval of a Recommendation to Set May 15, 2017 as the Application Deadline for Fireworks Permits 
 

9. BUSINESS ITEMS:  

A. Introduction of a Resolution Approving the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated April 12, 2017 and 
making findings required by the Mitigation Fee Act and setting of a Public Hearing on May 10, 2017 to 
consider its approval 
 

B. Submittal of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 2016 Internal Audit covering Calendar Years 
2015 & 2016 

 
C. Review of the District’s Budget Status as of March 31,2017 and authorize the General Manager to 

issue purchase orders to replace the HVAC ($13,159) unit, meter reading equipment ($9,740) and 
provide an upgrade the District’s website ($9,500) 
 

10. UTILITY ITEMS: 

11. HEARING ITEMS:  

12. RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:  

13. LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS:    

14. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; Professional Service Proposals 

15. FUTURE HEARING ITEMS: May 10, 2017 Public Facility Fees                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                         

16. ADJOURNMENT:   

This agenda was prepared and posted pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2. Agenda is posted at the Oceano 
Community Services District, 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA.  Agenda and reports can be accessed and downloaded from the 
Oceano Community Services District website at www.oceanocsd.org   

ASSISTANCE FOR THE DISABLED If you are disabled in any way and need accommodation to participate in the Board 
meeting, please call the Clerk of the Board at (805) 481-6730 for assistance at least three (3) working days prior to the meeting 
so necessary arrangements can be made. 

ASISTENCIA A DISCAPACITADO Si usted está incapacitado de ninguna manera y necesita alojamiento para participar en la 
reunión de la Junta, por favor llame a la Secretaría de la Junta al (805) 481-6730 para recibir asistencia por lo menos tres (3) 
días antes de la reunión para que los arreglos necesarios puedan ser hechos.   
April 12, 2017 - Page 2 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24

http://www.oceanocsd.org/


 

 

Oceano Community Services District 
Summary Minutes  

Regular Meeting Wednesday, March 22, 2017 – 6:30 P.M. 
Oceano Community Services District Board Room 

1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 

1. CALL TO ORDER: at 6:30 p.m. by President White 

2. FLAG SALUTE: led by President White 

3. ROLL CALL:  All Board members present Director Brunet, Director Coalwell, Vice President Austin, 
President White. Also present, General Manager Ogren, District Legal Counsel Jeff Minnery, Business and 
Accounting Manager Carey Casciola. Director absent Angello. 

4. AGENDA REVIEW: Agenda approved as presented.   

5. PUBLIC COMMENT ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA:  No public comment. 

6. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS & REPORTS:  

a. STAFF REPORTS: 

i. Operations - Field Supervisor Tony Marraccino reported 7 work orders, 8 USA's, Lopez is 

currently at 58% full, inspecting if residents have a clean out on property. 

ii. FCFA - Chief Steve Lieberman – None 

iii. OCSD General Manager / Zone 3 Advisory Committee - General Manager Ogren reported on 

homeless coalition in 5 Cities, spring clean-up, and Zone 3 Advisory Committee next week. 

iv. Sheriff’s South Station - Commander Stewart MacDonald – Commander MacDonald gave an 

update on community incidents. Crime is not high in community. Vagrants are the largest 

problem, starting a community action team to work on the homeless problem.   

b. BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND OUTSIDE COMMITTEE REPORTS: 

i. Director Angello - Absent 

ii. Director Brunet – None 

iii. President White – reported on SSLOCSD 

iv. Vice President Austin - None 

v. Director Coalwell – reported on WRAC 

 c.     PUBLIC COMMENT ON SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS AND REPORTS: 

 No public comment. 

7 CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION: 
 

A. Review and Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting on 
February 22, 2017 

B. Review and Approval of Cash Disbursements 
C. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Cindy Doll; 

2480 Paso Robles; Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-102-025 
D. Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Conchal 

Enterprises, LLC; 1935 & 1945 Casitas; Assessor’s Parcel No. 
062-305-014 

E. Consideration of a Recommendation to Approve a Single Day 
Use Permit for use of District Facilities on April 8, 2017 for Santa 
Maria 4-Wheelers 

F. Consideration of a Recommendation to Approve a By-Law 
Amendment modifying the time of the District’s regular meetings 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and 
brief Board discussion, staff 
recommendations were approved with a 
motion from Director Brunet, a second by 
Director Coalwell and a 4-0 vote. Vice 
President Austin abstained from Item 7A.  

No public comment. 

Agenda Item 8A - Page 1 of 2April 12, 2017 - Page 3 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 

 

8 A BUSINESS ITEM: ACTION: 

Consideration of an Update on Capital Project efforts 
and direction as the Board deems appropriate 
 

After an opportunity for public comment and brief Board 
discussion, no action taken.  
Public comment was received by Pat Fitzgerald. 

 

9.       UTILITY ITEMS: None 
 

10.     HEARING ITEMS: None 
 

11.     RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: Housing Coalition 
 

12.     LATE RECEIVED WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS: None 
 

13.     CLOSED SESSION: was entered at approximately 8:45pm. Open session was resumed at approximate 
9:40pm 
No public comment.  
 

A. Pursuant to Government Code §54957.6: Conference with Labor Negotiators. Agency designated 
representative: General Manager, Paavo Ogren; Employee Organizations: a) Service Employees 
International Union 620  

No reportable Action 
B. Pursuant to Government Code §54956.9 (d)(2): Conference with District Counsel regarding 

anticipated litigation.  Number of cases:  one (1).  
No reportable Action 

 
14.     FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS: District Policies Continued; SSMP Audit; Professional Service Proposals; Zone 3 
Budget & Q3 Budget Review, Public Facilities Fees, IMMA nomination emails.   
 

15.     FUTURE HEARING ITEMS: None 
 

  16.     ADJOURNMENT: at approximately 9:43pm  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8A - Page 2 of 2April 12, 2017 - Page 4 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 12, 2017  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator  

Via: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item # 8C: Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Robert Dorazio; 2140 
Beach;  Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-116-025 

 

Recommendation 

That your Board authorize the General Manager or his designee to send the attached Intent to Serve 
Letter to Robert Dorazio; 2140 Beach Street; Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-116-025 

Discussion 

Mr. Dorazio submitted a request for a will-serve letter on March 18, 2017 attached and staff has 
prepared the attached “intent to serve” letter for your Board’s consideration. Staff has not identified 
any special concerns for the proposed development that would require any special conditions or denial 
of the request. 

Current Status 

The owner is in process of 
obtaining building permits from the 
County. Owner has built a new 
secondary dwelling unit. Owner 
started the building process in 
1992. In 2010 a permit was issued 
and expired in 2012. A new permit 
has been issued to final an expired 
permit.  

 

  

  
NAME OF APPLICANT ROBERT DORAZIO 
APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED MARCH 18, 2017 
ADDRESS 2140 BEACH 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 062-116-025 
TYPE OF USE SFR 
CONFIRMATION OF OWNERSHIP YES 
OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS? YES 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT? YES 
PREVIOUS WILL SERVE ISSUED YES 
EXPIRATION DATE 2007 
FEES REQUIRED $ 2,882.94 
  
SSLOCSD FEE SIGN-OFF REQUIRED? YES  
FOG PROGRAM REQUIRED? NO 
SSLOCSD SIUP REQUIRED? NO 
LETTER FROM FCFA? YES 
  

Agenda Item 8C - Page 1 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 5 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo issues building permits for land development in Oceano.  The issuance 
of will-serve letters and conditions of development is also coordinated with the Five Cities Fire 
Authority and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. 

Other Financial Considerations 
 

Owner paid estimated fees in 2006. Below is the current estimated fees.  

Fees due before building permits. 

Results 
Providing will serve letters for new development is consistent with the County’s General Plan and the 
interests of the property owner. 
 
Attachments:   
 

• Will serve request from Robert Dorazio 
 

Description Current Estimate Fees Fees Paid 2006 
Service Connection Fees   

Meter  5/8" $ 675.00 $ 675.00 
Front Footage 0.00 400.00 
State Water / Lopez Dam  1,000.00 0.00 
Inspection Fee 25.00 25.00 
Capacity Charge 5,514.96 3,232.02 

Estimated Water Fees $ 7,214.96 $ 4, 332.02 
Connection Fee 500.00 500.00 
Inspection Fee 25.00 25.00 

Estimated Sewer Fees $ 525.00 $ 525.00 
   

Total Water and Sewer Fees $ 7,739.96 $ 4,857.02 
   

Difference  $ 2,882.94 

Agenda Item 8C - Page 2 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 6 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8C - Page 3 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 7 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8C - Page 4 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 8 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
April 12, 2017 
 
Robert Dorazio 
PO Box 604 
Avila Beach, CA 93424 
 
SUBJECT: Intent to Serve Letter – Water and Wastewater Collection 
 APN 062-116-025; OCSD PROJECT #6520 OWNER/PROJECT: DORAZIO / SFR  

 
Dear Mr. Dorazio: 

 
The purpose of this letter is in response to your request for a will serve letter dated March 18, 2017 and to provide 
you with a confirmation that it is the intent of the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) to serve you water 
and provide you wastewater collections services for the project described in this letter.   
  
Please understand that prior to obtaining any building permit from the County of San Luis Obispo for the project, you 
must obtain a final will-serve letter from the District.  In order to obtain a final will-serve letter, the conditions of this 
“intent to serve” letter must be fully satisfied, or otherwise waived or modified by the Board of Directors unless the 
General Manager is authorized to modify or waive.  In addition, other agencies related to the OCSD, specifically the 
Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) may also 
have conditions that you must satisfy and provide proof of doing so to the OCSD.   
 
In the event that facts and circumstances associated with your application include errors or omissions, or for other 
reasons needed to ensure compliance with the OCSD ordinances, resolutions and/or rules and regulations, the 
OCSD reserves the right to modify the conditions prior to approval of the final will serve letter.  In the event of non-
compliance with the OCSD requirements, the OCSD reserves the right to take any and all actions necessary to 
ensure compliance and to also request that the County of San Luis Obispo take any and all actions to help ensure 
compliance, including but not limited to stop notices on construction activities. 
 
Oceano Community Services District intends to serve the single family residence development proposed for 2140 
Beach subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Payment of $ 2,882.94 is due to OCSD. 
 

2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the 
County of San Luis Obispo: 

 
a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts. 

 
b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must 

provide engineered plans and submit them to the District for review and approval, which 
may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will also be 
required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the OCSD on a time 
and materials basis. 
 

  
Agenda Item 8C - Page 5 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 9 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the 
District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are 
responsible for providing plans and specifications to the District for review and approval and for 
paying the costs of those modifications whether the work is done under your control or by the 
OCSD. You will also be required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the 
OCSD on a time and materials basis. 
 

4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, 
you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment 
permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Directors and recording with the County Clerk-
Recorder. 

 
5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your 

project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required 
by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly state that no conditions are required. 

 
6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the 

issuance of a final will serve letter. 
 
 
This intent to serve letter will expire April 12, 2018 and is nontransferable.  If you have any questions, please contact 
the office at (805) 481-6730. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator 

  
Agenda Item 8C - Page 6 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 10 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 12, 2017  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator  

Via: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item # 8D: Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Tyler & Krysta Seals; 
1376 21st Street;  Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-261-023 

 

Recommendation 

That your Board authorize the General Manager or his designee to send the attached Intent to Serve 
Letter to Tyler & Krysta Seals; 1376 21st Street; Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-261-023 

Discussion 

Mr. & Mrs. Seals submitted a request for a will-serve letter on March 8, 2017 attached and staff has 
prepared the attached “intent to serve” letter for your Board’s consideration. Staff has not identified 
any special concerns for the proposed development that would require any special conditions or denial 
of the request.  

Current Status 

The owner is in process of 
obtaining building permits from the 
County. Owner is proposing to add 
a second story with attached 
granny unit above garage without a 
kitchen.  

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo 
issues building permits for land 
development in Oceano.  The 

  
NAME OF APPLICANT TYLER & KRYSTA SEALS 
APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED MARCH 8, 2017 
ADDRESS 1376 21ST STREET 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 062-261-023 
TYPE OF USE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 
CONFIRMATION OF OWNERSHIP YES 
OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS ? YES 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT ? YES 
PREVIOUS WILL SERVE ISSUED N/A 
EXPIRATION DATE N/A 
FEES REQUIRED $ 1,375.00 
  
SSLOCSD FEE SIGN-OFF REQUIRED? NO 
FOG PROGRAM REQUIRED? NO 
SSLOCSD SIUP REQUIRED? NO 
LETTER FROM FCFA? YES 
  

Agenda Item 8D - Page 1 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 11 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

issuance of will-serve letters and conditions of development is also coordinated with the Five Cities Fire 
Authority and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. 

Other Financial Considerations 
 

Owner only needs to upgrade to 1" meter per FCFA to meet NFPA 13D Fire Protection System 
requirement. 

Fees due before building permits. 

Results 
Providing will serve letters for new development is consistent with the County’s General Plan and the 
interests of the property owner. 
 
Attachments:   
 

• Will serve request from Tyler & Krysta Seals 
• Five Cities Fire Authority requirements 

 

Description Estimate 
Service Connection Fees  

Meter  1" $ 1,350.00 
Inspection Fee 25.00 

Total $ 1,375.00 

Agenda Item 8D - Page 2 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 12 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8D - Page 3 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 13 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8D - Page 4 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 14 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8D - Page 5 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 15 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8D - Page 6 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 16 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
April 12, 2017 
 
Tyler & Krysta Seals 
1376 21st Street 
Oceano, CA. 93445 
 
SUBJECT: Intent to Serve Letter – Water and Wastewater Collection 
 APN 062-261-023; OCSD PROJECT #6517 OWNER/PROJECT: SEALS / 2ND STORY ADDITION  

 
Dear Mr. & Mrs. Seals: 

 
The purpose of this letter is in response to your request for a will serve letter dated March 8, 2017 and to provide you 
with a confirmation that it is the intent of the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) to serve you water and 
provide you wastewater collections services for the project described in this letter.   
  
Please understand that prior to obtaining any building permit from the County of San Luis Obispo for the project, you 
must obtain a final will-serve letter from the District.  In order to obtain a final will-serve letter, the conditions of this 
“intent to serve” letter must be fully satisfied, or otherwise waived or modified by the Board of Directors unless the 
General Manager is authorized to modify or waive.  In addition, other agencies related to the OCSD, specifically the 
Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) may also 
have conditions that you must satisfy and provide proof of doing so to the OCSD.   
 
In the event that facts and circumstances associated with your application include errors or omissions, or for other 
reasons needed to ensure compliance with the OCSD ordinances, resolutions and/or rules and regulations, the 
OCSD reserves the right to modify the conditions prior to approval of the final will serve letter.  In the event of non-
compliance with the OCSD requirements, the OCSD reserves the right to take any and all actions necessary to 
ensure compliance and to also request that the County of San Luis Obispo take any and all actions to help ensure 
compliance, including but not limited to stop notices on construction activities. 
 
Oceano Community Services District intends to serve the remodel/addition development proposed for 1376 21st 
Street subject to the following conditions:  
 

1. Payment of $ 1,375 is due to OCSD. 
 

2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the 
County of San Luis Obispo: 

 
a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts. 

 
b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must 

provide engineered plans  and submit them to the  District for review and approval, which 
may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will also be 
required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the OCSD on a time 
and materials basis. 
 

3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the 

  
Agenda Item 8D - Page 7 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 17 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are 
responsible for providing plans and specifications to the District for review and approval and for 
paying the costs of those modifications whether the work is done under your control or by the 
OCSD. You will also be required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the 
OCSD on a time and materials basis. 
 

4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, 
you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment 
permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Directors and recording with the County Clerk-
Recorder. 

 
5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your 

project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required 
by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly state that no conditions are required. 

 
6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the 

issuance of a final will serve letter. 
 
 
This intent to serve letter will expire April 12, 2018 and is nontransferable.  If you have any questions, please contact 
the office at (805) 481-6730. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator 

  
Agenda Item 8D - Page 8 of 8April 12, 2017 - Page 18 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 12, 2017  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator  

Via: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item # 8E: Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Donavan Veira; Lot 21 
corner of Tamera & 23RD  Street;  Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-023-043 

 

Recommendation 

That your Board authorize the General Manager or his designee to send the attached Intent to Serve 
Letter to Donavan Veira; Lot 21 corner of Tamera & 23RD Street; Assessor’s Parcel No. 062-023-043 

Discussion 

Mr. Veira submitted a request for a will-serve letter on March 7, 2017 attached and staff has prepared 
the attached “intent to serve” letter for your Board’s consideration. Staff has not identified any special 
concerns for the proposed development that would require any special conditions or denial of the 
request.  

Current Status 

The owner is in process of 
obtaining building permits from the 
County. Owner is proposing a new 
single family residence on stilts lot 
is currently a basin.   

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo 
issues building permits for land 
development in Oceano.  The 
issuance of will-serve letters and 
conditions of development is also 

  
NAME OF APPLICANT DONAVAN VEIRA 
APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED MARCH 7, 2017 
ADDRESS LOT 21 CORNER OF TAMERA & 

23RD  STREET 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 062-023-043 
TYPE OF USE SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENCE 
CONFIRMATION OF OWNERSHIP YES 
OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS ? YES 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT ? YES 
PREVIOUS WILL SERVE ISSUED N/A 
EXPIRATION DATE  
FEES REQUIRED $ 12,494.96 
  
SSLOCSD FEE SIGN-OFF REQUIRED? YES 
FOG PROGRAM REQUIRED? NO 
SSLOCSD SIUP REQUIRED? NO 
LETTER FROM FCFA? NO 
  

Agenda Item 8E - Page 1 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 19 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

coordinated with the Five Cities Fire Authority and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation 
District. 

Other Financial Considerations 
 

Owner will need a 1" meter per FCFA to meet NFPA 13D Fire Protection System requirement. 

Fees due before building permits. 

 

Results 
Providing will serve letters for new development is consistent with the County’s General Plan and the 
interests of the property owner. 
 
Attachments:   
 

• Will serve request from Donavan Veira 
 

 

Description Estimate 
Water Connection Fees  

Meter  1" $ 1,350.00 
Front Footage  $4, 080.00 
State Water Project/Lopez Dam Improvement 
Charge 

$ 1,000.00 

Inspection Fee ($ 25 per SFR Equivalent Unit) $ 25.00 
Capacity Charge $ 5,514.96 

Total $ 11,969.96 
Sewer Connection Fees  

Sewer Connection Fee $ 500.00 
Inspection Fee ($ 25 per SFR Equivalent Unit) $ 25.00 

Total $ 525.00 
  

Total Water and Sewer Estimated Fees $ 12,494.96 

Agenda Item 8E - Page 2 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 20 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8E - Page 3 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 21 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8E - Page 4 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 22 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
April 12, 2017 
 
Donavan Veira 
2110 Nipomo St 
Oceano, CA. 93444 
 
SUBJECT: Intent to Serve Letter – Water and Wastewater Collection 
 APN 062-023-043; OCSD PROJECT #6518 OWNER/PROJECT: VEIRA / SFR   

 
Dear Mr. Veira: 

 
The purpose of this letter is in response to your request for a will serve letter dated March 7, 2017 and to provide you 
with a confirmation that it is the intent of the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) to serve you water and 
provide you wastewater collections services for the project described in this letter.   
  
Please understand that prior to obtaining any building permit from the County of San Luis Obispo for the project, you 
must obtain a final will-serve letter from the District.  In order to obtain a final will-serve letter, the conditions of this 
“intent to serve” letter must be fully satisfied, or otherwise waived or modified by the Board of Directors unless the 
General Manager is authorized to modify or waive.  In addition, other agencies related to the OCSD, specifically the 
Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) may also 
have conditions that you must satisfy and provide proof of doing so to the OCSD.   
 
In the event that facts and circumstances associated with your application include errors or omissions, or for other 
reasons needed to ensure compliance with the OCSD ordinances, resolutions and/or rules and regulations, the 
OCSD reserves the right to modify the conditions prior to approval of the final will serve letter.  In the event of non-
compliance with the OCSD requirements, the OCSD reserves the right to take any and all actions necessary to 
ensure compliance and to also request that the County of San Luis Obispo take any and all actions to help ensure 
compliance, including but not limited to stop notices on construction activities. 
 
Oceano Community Services District intends to serve the single family residence development proposed for Lot 21 
corner of Tamera & 23rd Street subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Payment of $ 12,494.96 is due to OCSD. 
 

2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the 
County of San Luis Obispo: 

 
a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts. 

 
b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must 

provide engineered plans and submit them to the District for review and approval, which 
may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will also be 
required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the OCSD on a time 
and materials basis. 
 

  
Agenda Item 8E - Page 5 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 23 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the 
District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are 
responsible for providing plans and specifications to the District for review and approval and for 
paying the costs of those modifications whether the work is done under your control or by the 
OCSD. You will also be required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the 
OCSD on a time and materials basis. 
 

4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, 
you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment 
permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Directors and recording with the County Clerk-
Recorder. 

 
5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your 

project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required 
by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly state that no conditions are required. 

 
6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the 

issuance of a final will serve letter. 
 
 
This intent to serve letter will expire April 12, 2017 and is nontransferable.  If you have any questions, please contact 
the office at (805) 481-6730. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator 

  
Agenda Item 8E - Page 6 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 24 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 12, 2017  

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator  

Via: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

Subject: Agenda Item # 8F: Submittal for approval an Intent to Serve Letter to Larry Moles; 311 
Juanita; Assessor’s Parcel No. 061-021-051 

 

Recommendation 

That your Board authorize the General Manager or his designee to send the attached Intent to Serve 
Letter to Larry Moles; 311 Juanita; Assessor’s Parcel No. 061-021-051 

Discussion 

Mr. Moles submitted a request for a will-serve letter on March 23, 2017 attached and staff has 
prepared the attached “intent to serve” letter for your Board’s consideration. Staff has not identified 
any special concerns for the proposed development that would require any special conditions or denial 
of the request. 

Current Status 

The owner is in process of 
obtaining building permits from the 
County. Owner is proposing a 
remodel/addition to the existing 
single family residence.   

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo 
issues building permits for land 
development in Oceano.  The 
issuance of will-serve letters and 

  
NAME OF APPLICANT LARRY MOLES  
APPLICATION DATE RECEIVED MARCH 23, 2017 
ADDRESS 311 JUANITA 
ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER 061-021-051 
TYPE OF USE REMODEL/ADDITION 
CONFIRMATION OF OWNERSHIP YES 
OFFSITE IMPROVEMENTS? NO 
REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT? YES 
PREVIOUS WILL SERVE ISSUED NA 
EXPIRATION DATE NA 
FEES REQUIRED $ 1,375 
  
SSLOCSD FEE SIGN-OFF REQUIRED? NO 
FOG PROGRAM REQUIRED? NO 
SSLOCSD SIUP REQUIRED? NO 
LETTER FROM FCFA? NO 
  

Agenda Item 8F - Page 1 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 25 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

conditions of development is also coordinated with the Five Cities Fire Authority and the South San Luis 
Obispo County Sanitation District. 

Other Financial Considerations 
 

Owner only needs to upgrade to 1" meter per FCFA to meet NFPA 13D Fire Protection System 
requirement. 

Fees due before building permits. 

Results 
Providing will serve letters for new development is consistent with the County’s General Plan and the 
interests of the property owner. 
 
Attachments:   
 

• Will serve request from Larry Moles 
 

Description Estimate 
Service Connection Fees  

Meter  1" $ 1,350.00 
Inspection Fee 25.00 

Total $ 1,375.00 

Agenda Item 8F - Page 2 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 26 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8F - Page 3 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 27 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Agenda Item 8F - Page 4 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 28 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
April 12, 2017 
 
Larry Moles 
8851 S. Grantland 
Fresno, CA 93706 
 
SUBJECT: Intent to Serve Letter – Water and Wastewater Collection 
 APN 061-021-051; OCSD PROJECT #6522 OWNER/PROJECT: MOLES / REMODEL/ADDITION  

 
Dear Mr. Moles: 

 
The purpose of this letter is in response to your request for a will serve letter dated March 23, 2017 and to provide 
you with a confirmation that it is the intent of the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) to serve you water 
and provide you wastewater collections services for the project described in this letter.   
  
Please understand that prior to obtaining any building permit from the County of San Luis Obispo for the project, you 
must obtain a final will-serve letter from the District.  In order to obtain a final will-serve letter, the conditions of this 
“intent to serve” letter must be fully satisfied, or otherwise waived or modified by the Board of Directors unless the 
General Manager is authorized to modify or waive.  In addition, other agencies related to the OCSD, specifically the 
Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) and the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District (SSLOCSD) may also 
have conditions that you must satisfy and provide proof of doing so to the OCSD.   
 
In the event that facts and circumstances associated with your application include errors or omissions, or for other 
reasons needed to ensure compliance with the OCSD ordinances, resolutions and/or rules and regulations, the 
OCSD reserves the right to modify the conditions prior to approval of the final will serve letter.  In the event of non-
compliance with the OCSD requirements, the OCSD reserves the right to take any and all actions necessary to 
ensure compliance and to also request that the County of San Luis Obispo take any and all actions to help ensure 
compliance, including but not limited to stop notices on construction activities. 
 
Oceano Community Services District  intends to serve the remodel/addition development proposed for 311 Juanita 
subject to the following conditions: 
 

1. Payment of $ 1,375 is due to OCSD. 
 

2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the 
County of San Luis Obispo: 

 
a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts. 

 
b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must 

provide engineered plans  and submit them to the  District for review and approval, which 
may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will also be 
required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the OCSD on a time 
and materials basis. 
 

  
Agenda Item 8F - Page 5 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 29 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the 
District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are 
responsible for providing plans and specifications to the District for review and approval and for 
paying the costs of those modifications whether the work is done under your control or by the 
OCSD. You will also be required to execute a reimbursement agreement to cover costs of the 
OCSD on a time and materials basis. 
 

4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, 
you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment 
permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Directors and recording with the County Clerk-
Recorder. 

 
5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your 

project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required 
by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly state that no conditions are required. 

 
6. All project improvements approved by OCSD  will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the 

issuance of a final will serve letter. 
 
 
This intent to serve letter will expire April 12, 2018 and is nontransferable.  If you have any questions, please contact 
the office at (805) 481-6730. 
 
Respectfully submitted,  
 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
 
Celia Ruiz, Will Serve Coordinator 

  
Agenda Item 8F - Page 6 of 6April 12, 2017 - Page 30 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

Date: April 12, 2017 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Celia Ruiz, Account Administrator III 

Via: Paavo Ogren, General Manager  

 
 Subject: Agenda Item # 8G; Approval of a Recommendation to Set May 15, 2017 as the 

Application Deadline for Fireworks Permits   
 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board set May 15, 2017 as the application due date for 
organizations interested in obtaining approval to operate “safe and sane” fireworks stands in 
Oceano. 

Discussion 
 

Annually, the District accepts and approves applications for organizations to operate “Safe and 
Sane” fireworks stands.  Resolution 1997-12 provides that “The District will reserve an 
application for succeeding years for those vendors that comply with all District Rules and 
Regulations for the sale of Safe and Sane Fireworks.”  In 2016, the following organizations 
obtained approval from the District: 
 

• The Anchor of Faith Apostolic Church 
• The Church of God of Prophecy 
• The Five Cities Aerie No. 4153 F.O.E.  
• Open Door Pre-School 

 
Attached is the application that the District has used in prior years and which has been updated 
for the current year. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 8G - Page 1 of 5April 12, 2017 - Page 31 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

The proposed time frames for sales of Safe and Sane fireworks: 

 
Application process opens April 13, 2017 

Application process closes May 15, 2017 

Board of Director Approval of Applications May 24, 2017 

Booths begin sales        No sooner than noon June 28 

Booth sales end   No later than noon July 5 

Discharge of Safe and Sane firework Oceano allows the discharge of fireworks all 
day every day of the year 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

The Fire Chief of Five Cities Fire Authority (FCFA) is the official recipient of applications in 
accordance with Resolution 1991-2.  Oceano CSD staff will facilitate the efforts with FCFA and 
coordinate final recommendations for your Board’s consideration on May 24, 2017. Discussions 
with FCFA Chief, S. Lieberman, have identified firework related issues (exhausted fireworks left 
in the streets and misc. other debris left behind) stemming from previous years. FCFA Chief 
Lieberman will be working with all three agencies to determine possible solutions. 

Other Financial Considerations 

Each successful applicant is charged an administrative fee of $385, which includes a non-
refundable amount of $335, and a refundable clean up fee of $500.  Each applicant must also 
provide a public liability and property damage insurance policy. 

Results 

The sale of Safe and Sane fireworks in accordance with established resolutions helps to ensure 
safe and well governed communities. 

 

Agenda Item 8G - Page 2 of 5April 12, 2017 - Page 32 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 

 

 

 

 

April 13, 2017 

 

Address 

 

Dear Name : 

 

Enclosed is the Application for the Sale of Safe & Sane Fireworks and a Property Owner’s 

Letter of Permission to Sell Fireworks within the Oceano Community Services District for July 

4, 2017. Please note that both forms must be completed and returned by May 15, 2017;   the 

$500.00 refundable cleaning deposit and $385.00 administration fee will need to be 

submitted once Board of Directors has assigned a booth to your organization. Applications 

must be received by the May deadline to present to the Board of Directors for final 

determination on May 24, 2017. 

 

If you have any questions, please feel free to call the District office 805-481-6730. 
 

Sincerely, 

 

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

Celia Ruiz, Account Administrator III 

 
 

Agenda Item 8G - Page 3 of 5April 12, 2017 - Page 33 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
  
 
 
 
 

 
APPLICATION FOR SALE OF FIREWORKS 

WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF 
OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
This application must be completed and returned to the District Office 
located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA, 93445, by May 15, 2017. The 
application must be accompanied with the property owner's written 
permission for your proposed booth location. The $500.00 refundable 
cleaning deposit and $385.00 administration fee will need to be 
submitted once Board of Directors has assigned a booth to your 
organization. 
 
Name of Applicant:  ____________________________________________ 
 
Representing/Organization:  ____________________________________ 
 
Mailing Address of Organization/Applicant:  ____________________  
        ________________________ 

________________________                                                       
________________________ 

 
Telephone: Daytime ______________ After 5:00 p.m._______________ 
 
Proposed Booth Location:  ______________________________________ 
 
Property Owner's Name:  ________________________________________ 
 
The Board of Directors has determined that participation is 
conditioned upon each organization indicating where the profits from 
their sales will be directed with at least 50% of the profits to be 
spent within Oceano/Halcyon. (Use back page if necessary). This 
statement will be reviewed by the Board of Directors before a permit 
is issued.  
 
Please explain how the 2016 profits were used:   
             
             
              
Please explain how you plan to use the 2017 profits for the benefit of 
Oceano/Halcyon: 
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________
______________________________________________________________________ 
 
____________________________  ____________________________ 
Signature of Applicant             Date 
 

Agenda Item 8G - Page 4 of 5April 12, 2017 - Page 34 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



  
 

 
 
 
 

PROPERTY OWNER'S LETTER OF PERMISSION 
 TO SELL FIREWORKS 
 
Fire Chief Lieberman 
Oceano Community Services District 
PO Box 599 
1655 Front Street 
Oceano, CA 93475 
 
SUBJECT:  FIREWORKS BOOTH LOCATION/PROPERTY OWNER'S CONSENT 
 
Dear Fire Chief Lieberman: 
 
Permission is hereby granted to ___________________________________________ on behalf of the 

Applicant's Name 
 
 ___________________________________ and ___________________________________________ 
       Organization Selling Fireworks    Fireworks Company’s Name 
 
for the exclusive right to use the property located/named below for their 2017 fireworks booth: 
 

______________________________________________________ 
Street Address or Location Description 

 
 

_____________________________________________________ 
City, State, Zip Code 

 
      

_____________________________________________________ 
 Assessor's Parcel Number 

This address is within the boundaries of the Oceano Community Services District. It is understood that this sale will be 
conducted in accordance with all District, County, and State regulations. 
 
By:  ______________________________________________________ 

Signature of Property Owner 
 

______________________________________________________ 
Please PRINT Property Owner's Name 

 
______________________________________________________ 
PROPERTY OWNER'S MAILING ADDRESS AND TELEPHONE NUMBER 
 
Dated this ________ day of ____________________, 2017 

Agenda Item 8G - Page 5 of 5April 12, 2017 - Page 35 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

 

Date: April 12, 2017 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 

Subject:   Agenda Item #9A: Introduction of a Resolution Approving the Report on Public 
Facilities Fees dated April 12, 2017 and making findings required by the Mitigation 
Fee Act and setting of a Public Hearing on May 10, 2017 to consider its approval. 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board schedule a public hearing on May 10, 2017 to consider 
adopting the attached resolution identifying the purpose and use of Public Facilities Fees, 
their relationship to new development, and a schedule of future improvements for 
firefighting and emergency response needs. 

Discussion 

On February 22, 2017, the Board approved an agreement with the County of San Luis Obispo 
for the collection and use of Public Facility Fees (PFF’s) relating to firefighting and emergency 
response services. Government Code Section 66000 et seq. authorizes local agencies to collect 
fees from development projects to mitigate the impact of new development on public facilities. 
The PFF agreement between the County and the District obligates the District to adopt a 
resolution documenting findings relating to the purpose, use, and the relationship of fees to 
new development. 

 Background 

Since 1991 the County has been collecting PFF’s to mitigate impacts caused by new 
development. The PFF’s collected by the County are mostly for County facilities.  In addition, 
the County collects PFF’s for six special districts with independent firefighting jurisdictions in 
Los Osos, San Miguel, Cayucos, Santa Margarita, Avila Beach, and Oceano.  Within Oceano, the 

April 12, 2017 - Page 36 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

PFF’s are specifically restricted for firefighting and emergency response equipment and facilities 
and charged to new development based at a rate of $0.902 per square foot. 

Historically, the District has been providing annual reports to the County, and as illustrated in 
the attached report, the District has been tracking PFF funds held by the District, including 
interest, in its audited financial statements since June 30, 2012. 

PFF Agreement with the County 

The agreement approved on February 22, 2017, requires the District to adopt 
a resolution with the following findings: 

 
(1) The purpose of the fees and the specific eligible uses. 

 
(2) That there is a reasonable relationship between new development in Oceano 

and the firefighting and emergency response capital improvements for which 
the fees will be used. 

 
In addition, the agreement provides that the District will: 
 

(3) Immediately expend the public facility fees on the identified capital 
improvements or commit the funds to future capital improvements. In the 
event that the funds are committed for future expenditures the OCSD will 
identify the approximate date of such expenditure and will keep the funds 
in a separate account to avoid any commingling of the fees with other 
OCSD revenue. 

April 2017 Report on Public Facilities Fees 

The attached report has been prepared to support the findings required in the resolution, other 
requirements in the County agreement, statutory requirements and additional information 
relevant to the fees.  The County agreement and Government Code Section 66006 also require 
that specific information is prepared annually within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year 
and made available for public review.  Since the agreement was adopted in the current fiscal 
year, reporting of annual information on the District’s agenda will commence within 180 days 
after the end of the current fiscal year. 

  

April 12, 2017 - Page 37 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Other Agency Involvement 

The County of San Luis Obispo establishes the public facilities fees, collects them, and 
distributes them to the District.  The Five Cities Fire Authority is preparing a Strategic Plan 
which may result in changes to the eligible uses in the future, and Chief Lieberman was 
consulted in preparation of the attached report. 

Other Financial Considerations 

The District currently holds approximately $200,000 in fees and will be developing 
recommendations to proceed with bidding on the emergency generator on May 10, 2017.  
Based on estimated project cost of $100,000, $63,450 is an eligible use of public facilities fees 
and $36,550 will require local funds.  The local funds can be borrowed from the public facilities 
funds pursuant to Government Code 66006 (b)(1)(G) provided that the date of repayment and 
provisions for interest are established.  A resolution for this option will prepared for your 
Board’s consideration on May 10th, as well as an update on possible grants. 

Results 

Identifying the purpose and uses of PFF’s, their relationship to new development, and a 
schedule of future improvements for firefighting and emergency response meets requirements 
of the County agreement and state laws and helps to promote a well governed and safe 
community. 

 

 

Attachments:   

• Resolution 
o April 12, 2017 Report on Public Facilities Fees 

 Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo 
 Public Facilities Fees Capital Projects List 
 List of Equipment Contribute to FCFA pursuant to the JPA 

April 12, 2017 - Page 38 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



1 

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT  
RESOLUTION NO. 2017 ___ 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT APPROVING THE REPORT ON PUBLIC FACILITES FEES 
DATED APRIL 12, 2017 AND MAKING FINDINGS REQUIRED BY THE 
MITIGATION FEE ACT 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code Section 66000, et 
seq.), certain findings are required to be made regarding the expenditure of development impact 
fees; and  
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2017, the Oceano Community Services District (“District”) 
approved an agreement with the County of San Luis Obispo Board of Supervisors related to 
firefighting and emergency response capital improvement projects; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated April 12, 2017 (attached as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference), identifies a broad class of projects related to 
firefighting and emergency response capital improvement projects and the reasonable 
relationship between new development in District boundaries and the firefighting and emergency 
response capital improvement projects for which fees will be used; and  
 

WHEREAS, the amount of a fees calculated and established on projects in the District 
are based on the July 26, 2011 update of the County’s Public Facilities Financing Plan approved 
by the Board of Supervisors; and 
 

WHEREAS, the General Manager of the District has duly noticed the Report on Public 
Facilities Fees dated April 12, 2017, and provided a public hearing pursuant to Government 
Code Section 66002.   
 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE OCEANO COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE, DECLARE, DETERMINE, AND 
ORDER AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. The District hereby approves the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated April 12, 
2017, in accordance with Government Code Section 66000, et seq.  

 
2. Based upon its review of the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated April 12, 

2017, the accompanying staff report, an such other information as was presented to the District 
during its consideration of this Resolution, the District finds as required by Government Code 
Section 66001 (6) the following: 

 
a. The purpose of the public facilities fees is for firefighting and emergency 

response capital improvement projects and the fees shall be used in a manner consistent with this 
purpose. 

 

April 12, 2017 - Page 39 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



2 

b. The reasonable relationship between the public facilities fees and the 
purpose for which they are charged is demonstrated in the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated 
April 12, 2017. 

 
c. The reasonable relationship between the need for firefighting and 

emergency response capital improvement projects and the type or projects for which the fees 
shall be used is demonstrated in the Report on Public Facilities Fees dated April 12, 2017. 
 
 
Upon the motion of Director ______________, seconded by Director __________ and upon the 
following roll call vote, to wit: 
 
 AYES:   
 NOES:   
 ABSENT:   
 ABSTAIN:   
 
The foregoing Resolution is hereby passed and adopted this __ day of ___, 2017. 
 
 

________________________________ 
Karen White, PRESIDENT 

 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________ 

April 12, 2017 - Page 40 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
 
 
 

Oceano Community Services District 
Report on Public Facilities Fees 

April 12, 2017 
  

April 12, 2017 - Page 41 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



2 
 

Table of Contents 

 
Section 1 - Introduction ......................................................................................................................3 

Purpose ..................................................................................................................................................... 3 

PFF Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo ....................................................................................... 3 

Statutory Requirements ............................................................................................................................ 3 

Fee Calculations ........................................................................................................................................ 4 

Five Cities Fire Authority ........................................................................................................................... 4 

Section 2 - Public Facilities Fee Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo..........................................5 

Section 3 - Purpose & Eligible Use of Public Facilities Fees .................................................................6 

Facilities and capital equipment to be funded with PFF’s ........................................................................ 6 

Station Remodel ........................................................................................................................................ 7 

Permanent Housing .................................................................................................................................. 7 

Emergency Generator ............................................................................................................................... 7 

Fire Engines ............................................................................................................................................... 8 

FCFA Equipment Needs ............................................................................................................................. 8 

Section 4 - Relationship between Oceano Development and Use of Fee; Proportional Cost Sharing 
Analysis........................................................................................................................... 10 

Step #1 – Evaluating Population Data ..................................................................................................... 11 

Step #2 - New Development’s Proportionate Share of Costs ................................................................. 11 

Fire Station – Construction Costs ........................................................................................................ 11 

Fire Station – Land Costs ..................................................................................................................... 12 

Fire Station – Other Considerations .................................................................................................... 12 

Fire Station – Emergency Generator ................................................................................................... 13 

Fire Engines ......................................................................................................................................... 14 

Fee Revenue Estimates ....................................................................................................................... 15 

Step #3 – Comparing PFF Revenues to Eligible Costs ............................................................................. 15 

Section 5 – Schedule of Expenditures and Commitments ................................................................... 17 

Fiscal Challenges on Timing with Public Facilities Fees .......................................................................... 17 

Completing the Fire Station .................................................................................................................... 18 

Constructing a New Fire Station ............................................................................................................. 18 

Fire Engines ............................................................................................................................................. 19 

Attachment “A” - Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo................................................................... 20 

Attachment “B” - Public Facilities Fees Capital Projects List ...................................................................... 21 

Attachment “C” - List of Equipment Contribute to FCFA pursuant to the JPA ........................................... 22 

 

April 12, 2017 - Page 42 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



3 
 

 

Section 1 - Introduction 
 

 
Purpose 
 

This report on Public Facilities Fees (PFF’s) has been prepared for review by the public 
and the Oceano Community Services District (District) Board of Directors to support 
requirements established by the County of San Luis Obispo and California Government Code 
Section 66000 et  seq. (the Mitigation Fee Act).  It includes an overview of fiscal, statutory, and 
capital investment issues relating to the District’s receipt and use of the PFF’s and provides 
public reporting information.   

 
The PFF’s are collected by the County of San Luis Obispo and transferred to the District.  

Historically, the District has provided annual information to the County to support 
requirements of the County’s fee program.  In addition, the District has also been reporting the 
amounts of PFF funds held by the District in its annual audited financial statements since June 
30, 2012.  This report helps to ensure that inter-agency efforts between the County and the 
District are coordinated more formally in the future as a multi-agency fee program. 
 
PFF Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo 
 

Recently, the County prepared and provided OCSD with an inter-agency agreement “for 
the purpose of the collection, distribution, and expenditure of impact fees to mitigate the 
impact of new development on the provision of firefighting and emergency response services.”  
The District’s Board of Directors approved the agreement (Attachment “A”), on February 22, 
2017. 
 

The agreement with the County will help to ensure that the actions of both agencies are 
coordinated to comply with statutory requirements.  The agreement identifies specific 
requirements that the District must meet to continue to participate in the County fee program.  
Those requirements include formal findings that the Board of Directors must adopt by 
resolution, requirements associated with expending the funds, and reporting requirements.  
The District’s obligations in the County agreement are consistent with statutory requirements. 
 
Statutory Requirements 
 

Government Code Section 66000 et seq., which is also known as the “Mitigation Fee 
Act” established the requirements associated with collecting and using PFF’s.   

 
Several legal cases have interpreted the Mitigation Fee Act and numerous publications 

have been prepared providing guidance on complying with legal requirements.  This report is 
intended to be part of the District’s public record in support of the formal findings and other 
action(s) of the Board of Directors.   

April 12, 2017 - Page 43 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



4 
 

 
Government Code Section 66000 recognizes that the following two approaches in 

establishing or imposing PFF’s on a Development project:  
 

1. PFF’s may be “established for a broad class of projects by legislation of general 
applicability,” or, 
 

2. PFF’s may be “imposed on a specific project on an ad hoc basis” 
 

The PFF’s established by the County and transferred to the District are those established 
for a “broad class of projects.”  The issues and findings supported in this report are therefore 
based on related requirements.  PFF’s in Oceano are not imposed on a “specific project on an 
ad hoc basis” by the District, or by the County for the District.   

 
Fee Calculations 

 
The amount of a fee calculated and established on projects in Oceano are based on the 

July 26, 2011 update of the County’s Public Facilities Financing Plan approved by the Board of 
Supervisors.  The County’s most recent five (5) year report on their Public Facilities Fees 
Program was received by the Board of Supervisors on January 5, 2016, and their most recent 
annual report was received by the Board on January 24, 2017.  These and the other public 
reports that have been submitted to the Board of Supervisors are incorporated herein by 
reference as part of the District’s public records. 

 
Other requirements that may be imposed on Development projects, including but not 

limited to complying with the Uniform Fire Code, conditions associated with obtaining water, 
wastewater and other municipal services, other PFF’s that may be established by the County, or 
other land-use conditions imposed by the County are independent from this report. 

 
Five Cities Fire Authority 

 
The District entered into a Joint Exercise of Powers of Agreement (JPA) with the cities of 

Grover Beach and Arroyo Grande, dated June 7, 2010 forming the Five Cities Fire Authority 
(FCFA).  Section 8 of the JPA provides that the “Authority itself is not intended to directly own, 
maintain, or insure any existing building, structure, or facility that is owned at the time of the 
activation of the Joint Powers Authority…”  As a result, the District is responsible for providing a 
fire station for use by the Authority.  In addition, the District is responsible under the JPA for 
paying its proportional share of costs of capital equipment and other costs of firefighting and 
emergency services for Oceano.   

 
The Chief of the Five Cities Fire Authority was consulted in the preparation of this report 

and the March 2017 draft of the Five Cities Fire Authority Strategic Plan was reviewed and 
referenced in Section 3. 

 

April 12, 2017 - Page 44 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



5 
 

 
Section 2 - Public Facilities Fee Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo 

 

On February 22, 2017, the Board approved an agreement with the County of San Luis 
Obispo for the collection and use of Public Facility Fees (PFF’s) relating to firefighting and 
emergency response services. Government Code Section 66000 et seq. authorizes local 
agencies to collect fees from development projects to mitigate the impact of new development 
on public facilities. The PFF agreement between the County and the District requires the 
District to adopt a resolution with the following findings: 

 

(1) The purpose of the fees and the specific eligible uses. 
 

(2) That there is a reasonable relationship between new 
development in Oceano and the firefighting and emergency 
response capital improvements for which the fees will be used. 

 
In addition, the agreement provides that: 

 
(3) The District will immediately expend the public facility fees on the 

identified capital improvements or commit the funds to future 
capital improvements. In the event that the funds are committed 
for future expenditure, the OCSD will identify the approximate 
date of such expenditure and will keep the funds in a separate 
account to avoid any commingling of the fees with other OCSD 
revenue. 

 
Lastly, the County agreement specifically provides that the District will submit annual 

reports to describe the District’s progress toward performing its obligations, including public 
information required pursuant to Government Code Section 66006.  The following sections of 
this report address these requirements. 

 
  

April 12, 2017 - Page 45 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



6 
 

 
 

Section 3 - Purpose & Eligible Use of Public Facilities Fees 
 

Establishing findings supporting the purpose of the PFF’s for Oceano and the fees 
specific eligible uses is important to help ensure that they are appropriate, that they do not 
exceed a reasonable proportional share of costs attributable to new development, and so they 
are not challenged and deemed invalid.  Fees that exceed reasonable relationships to new 
development risk being declared as a special tax, could require 2/3rd voter approval, could 
require refunds, and/or be subject to other remedies.  

 

Consistent with the State’s Mitigation Fee Act, the purpose of the PFF’s received by the 
District is to defray all or a portion of the cost of public facilities related to new development 
projects.  In other words, the fees establish a cost to new development which should reflect 
development’s proportional share of facilities and capital equipment needed to provide 
firefighting and emergency services.  The eligible uses of the PFF’s are, likewise, those facilities 
and capital equipment needed as a result of new development.   

 

Determining the proportional share of costs that can be funded by PFF’s and new 
development is evaluated in Section 4 of this report.  

 

Facilities and capital equipment to be funded with PFF’s  

 

The County’s adopted Public Facilities Plan provides a reference that Oceano and the 
other special districts have prepared a list of projects. In recently working with the County, 
District staff was provided a document entitled “Public Facilities Fees Capital Projects List” 
which included a list of facilities and equipment that was apparently provided by the District to 
the County in prior years.  Those items on the list pertaining to Oceano are shown in 
Attachment "B." 

  
While researching District records, staff identified other documents that provide 

supporting evidence that Attachment “B” reflects the list of projects that the District has 
historically intended to fund with PFF’s.  The following provides a discussion of the purposes and 
eligible use of the Fire Station Remodel and acquisitions of fire engines.  

 
 

  

April 12, 2017 - Page 46 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



7 
 

Station Remodel  

 

The Station Remodel reflects the need to complete an incomplete facility for permanent 
housing needs of firefighters/emergency personnel who work shifts.  The need is better 
described as an addition to the existing structure as opposed to modifying or remodeling the 
existing structure. The District has previously commissioned some preliminary architectural 
drawings illustrating a floor plan of the station addition.  In addition, the existing station is 
incomplete since it does not have an emergency generator that complies with National Fire 
Protection Association Standard 110. 

 

Permanent Housing 
 
The primary purpose historically documented for the Station Remodel project is to 

provide permanent housing for emergency service personnel who work in shifts.  Existing 
temporary housing is provided in a modular unit located on the parking lot behind the Oceano 
Fire Station.  The need for permanent housing is consistent with workplace accommodations to 
provide emergency shift personnel throughout California.  It is also important for employment 
recruitment and retention. 

 
As an incomplete facility, prior District efforts identified a need for a station addition of 

approximately 1,800 square feet.  Sufficient funds do not exist at this time to pay for the 
Permanent Housing and Section 5 of this report addresses the schedule of when the District 
should be committed to undertake this project.  Since the fire station is a facility that the 
District is obligated to provide under the FCFA JPA, and not funded by FCFA, the use of the PFF’s 
for the Station Remodel is anticipated to be directly expended by the District. 

 
Emergency Generator  

 
In addition to the need for permanent housing, the existing fire station is also 

incomplete since it does not have a permanent generator that can restore power in accordance 
with National Fire Protection Association Standard 110, including the requirement that 
emergency power loads be picked up within 10 seconds.  Although the District previously had 
an emergency generator for the fire station, it did not comply with NFPA 110.  

 
The emergency generator was not separately identified in Attachment “B” from the 

Station Remodel when the most recent update to the County’s Public Facilities Financing Plan 
was approved in 2011.  Presumably, it was one of many components of the remodel that would 
be needed.  Annual information provided by the District to the County for fiscal years ending 

April 12, 2017 - Page 47 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



8 
 

June 30, 2015 and June 30, 2016 did, nevertheless, separately identify the emergency 
generator.  

 
Since this report is formally intended to support District findings on the specific eligible 

uses for PFF’s, the emergency generator is now specifically itemized in this report to clarify and 
confirm that it is a component of an incomplete facility and that it will be constructed in the 
near future in advance of the remaining construction work needed for permanent housing.  
Section 5 of this report identifies its anticipated completion in 2017. 

 
Fire Engines 

 
The need for additional fire engines to accommodate higher levels of service for 

increasing populations has been documented as part of information provided to the County. 
 
The need for a Type 1 Fire Engine at an estimated cost of $475,000 has been identified 

for several years.  A Type 1 Engine is a conventional urban fire engine.  Recent purchases by 
FCFA indicate costs are more reasonably in the $550,000 - $600,000 range, but the $475,000 is 
still used in this report for consistency purposes since fees and other costs have also not been 
adjusted for inflation. It is included in the project list supporting the County’s Public Facilities 
Financing Plan. 

 
A Type 4 Fire Engine, at a cost of $30,000 is also included on the list supporting the 

County’s Public Facilities Financing Plan.  A Type 4 engine is generally referenced as a wild-land 
engine, but past designations have been inconsistent.  Based on the cost estimate, the likely 
need was identified for a 4 wheel drive patrol vehicle. 

 
Attachment “C” illustrates the equipment list for the District that is included in the FCFA 

Joint Powers Agreement.  Two engines and a patrol vehicle are identified.  Expanding the 
District’s vehicle and equipment fleet to three engines and an additional patrol is consistent 
with a greater level of service needed with new development.   

 
FCFA Equipment Needs 

 
Upon creation of the FCFA in 2010, the District transferred its existing fire apparatus to 

the FCFA. Recently, FCFA has prepared a draft strategic plan identifying additional capital 
equipment needs and is in the process of identifying future equipment needs.  As a result, the 
District should anticipate that information provided to the County for the next 5 year update of 
its Public Facilities Financing Plan should also reflect the District’s costs for additional 
equipment as provided for in the FCFA JPA.   

April 12, 2017 - Page 48 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



9 
 

Two (2) Type 1 Fire Engines have been recently ordered or purchased by FCFA.  Both are 
replacement engines and not new apparatus needed to accommodate new development.  As a 
result, the District is funding those replacement engines with local tax revenues and not paying 
them with PFF’s.  An additional Fire Engine currently located at the Oceano Fire Station is a 
loaner from the California State Office of Emergency Services.  The loss of this loaner would 
result in a need for an additional Fire Engine at the Oceano station, but a new engine would not 
be considered a replacement engine in the event the Cal OES engine was not funded by the 
community. 

 
The District essentially has two options for funding the new Type 1 Fire Engine for 

Oceano.  The first option is to utilize PFF’s for the District’s proportional share of costs for new 
FCFA equipment needed to serve new development in Oceano.  The second option is to directly 
purchase the new equipment and provide it as a District-owned asset for use by FCFA.  Since 
PFF’s will not be sufficient to purchase a new engine by the time the County’s 2020 Financing 
Plan must be updated, this report continues to identify the need for Fire Engines as previously 
identified to the County.  Updated information for the County’s 2020 Finance Plan update 
should consider the FCFA Strategic Plan once finalized. 

 
 

April 12, 2017 - Page 49 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



10 
 

Section 4 - Relationship between Oceano Development and Use of Fee;     
Proportional Cost Sharing Analysis 

 
This section evaluates the eligible uses of the PFF’s and the proportion of costs allocable 

to new development. In addition to identifying the facilities and equipment in Section 3 that will 
be funded with PFF's, Government Code Section 66001 requires a reasonable relationship 
between the fees and type of development on which the fees are imposed. 

 
With approval of the current fees in 2011, the County established the relationship 

between "square footage" of development and the fee that is calculated for individual 
development projects.  Currently, the PFF is $0.902 per square foot of a new structure.  

 
This section of the report evaluates the relationship between Oceano development and 

the use of the fees, as follows: 
 

1. Step #1 – Evaluating Population Data 
Population information from the County of San Luis Obispo is utilized to        
determine the following: 
 

a. Oceano’s population when PFF’s were initially established. 
 

b. The population growths of Oceano after the PFF’s were initially 
established. 
 

c. The ratio between pre-existing populations and population representing 
new development. 
 

2. Step #2 – New Development’s Proportionate Share of Costs 
New development’s proportionate share of costs for capital facilities and 
equipment identified in Section 3, based on population and other factors, which 
is intended to be funded from PFF's; and, 
 

3. Step #3 – Comparing PFF Revenues to Eligible Costs 
Estimates of PFF revenues collected by the County and transferred to the     
District.   

 
  

April 12, 2017 - Page 50 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



11 
 

Step #1 – Evaluating Population Data 
 
 Population Data is provided by the County of San Luis 
Obispo, Department of Planning and Building.  The fee 
program was started in 1991, and based on interpolating 
County data, the estimated population of Oceano in 1991 was 
6,228.  From 1991 to 2055 the estimated population increase 
is 3,000 or 32.5% of the estimated population at build-out. 
 
 Understanding population date is important for 
allocating costs of eligible uses for multiple reasons.  For 
facilities that provide an equal proportional benefit for the 
population prior to the fee and the population from new 
development, the allocation of 67.5%: 32.5% would be 
appropriate.   

 
 
  

 
 

Step #2 - New Development’s Proportionate Share of Costs  
 

The following evaluates each of the capital assets identified in Section 3. 
 

 Fire Station – Construction Costs 
 
 Section 3 identifies the need to construct permanent housing for emergency personnel 
who work shift schedules.   
 

The current footprint of the Oceano Fire Station is approximately 2,100 square feet.  The 
documented estimate of the permanent housing is 1,800 square feet.  The estimated square 
feet upon completion of the fire station is 3,900 square feet.  As an incomplete facility, once 
completed, new 
development’s 
proportionate share would 
be 32.5% of 3,900 square 
feet, or 1,267.5 square feet, 
which is 70.5% of the 1,800 
square feet of expansion 
needed to complete the facility.  

  
Estimating new development’s proportionate share of completing the fire station at 

70.5% is based on a cost per square foot which values the existing station the same as the cost 
of the expanded station.  The County’s Public Facilities Financing Plan estimates the 

1990  6,169 
1995  6,462 
2000  7,240 
2005  7,258 
2010  7,277 
2015  7,328 
2020  7,496 
2025  7,871 
2030  8,265 
2035  8,442 
2040  8,636 
2045  8,710 
2050  8,778 
2055 – Estimated 
Build out 9,228 

Existing Square Feet 2,100 s.f. 
Expanded Square Feet 1,800 s.f. 
Total 3,900 s.f. 
New Population 32.5 % 
%  of Total Attributable to New Development 1,267.5 s.f. 
% of Expansion (1267.5 / 1800)  70.5 % 

April 12, 2017 - Page 51 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



12 
 

construction cost of $325 per square foot (unadjusted for inflation to be consistent with fee 
estimates) and does not distinguish between construction costs for fire station housing versus 
the cost for the remainder of the fire station.  As a result, the District is utilizing the estimates 
incorporated in the County’s Plan and the resulting proportional share eligible for PFF funding is 
$408,900 ($580,000 x 70.5%). 

 
Fire Station – Land Costs 

 
The County estimate in the Public Facilities Financing Plan for land costs is $283,000 per 

acre.  The existing station is located on a lot of approximately 40,000 square feet, of which 
22,500 square feet, or approximately ½ acre, is needed for the fire station and ingress/egress of 
fire apparatus.  (As a note, the County estimates that an average station is located on 1.5 
acres).  With the Oceano Station on ½ acre, the value of the land is $141,500 (unadjusted for 
inflation).  New development’s proportional share of land costs is 32.5%, or $46,000. 

 
Fire Station – Other Considerations 

 
As development in Oceano has occurred, the transition from a substantially volunteer to 

a professionally staffed operations has been needed.  This transition in Oceano is similar to 
changes in firefighting and emergencies services throughout California over the past several 
decades.  The transition, in part, is a result of increasing populations because the capabilities of 
volunteer or part-time operations becomes less feasible as populations increase.   

 
The following calculation illustrates that allocating the entire $580,000 for the fire 

station expansion to new development would result in a 41.2% total cost allocation based on 
estimates of a completed facility, in comparison to 32.5% based solely on population increases. 
  

Construction Costs 3,900 square feet @ 
$325 per square foot 

$1,267,500 

Land Cost ½ acre @ 
$283,000 per acre 

$141,500 

 Total $1,409,000 
New Development Share @ 
Estimate Expansion Cost 

$580,000 41.2% 

New Development Share @ 
Estimated Population Increase 

$454,900 32.5% 

April 12, 2017 - Page 52 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



13 
 

 
To determine that 41.2% is reasonable to allocate to new development requires the 

finding that a population of approximately 1,950 can rely on a volunteer or part time 
firefighting and emergency response personnel.  The following illustrates the calculation 
deriving the 1,950 population amount. 

 
Population served by 
Volunteer / Part Time  

    
1,946 

 

Existing Population (1991) 6,228 32.5 % 4,282 58.8 % 
New Development 
Population (1991 – 2055) 

3,000 67.5 % 3,000 41.2 % 

Totals 9,228 100.0 % 7,282 100.0 % 
 
In comparison, to the 1,946 population figure, two communities in San Luis Obispo 

County that continue to rely on volunteers and part time emergency personnel include Santa 
Margarita and Cayucos.  The 2010 population estimate for Santa Margarita is 1,259 and for 
Cayucos is 2,529. 

 
The Santa Margarita Fire Protection District website still illustrates that it is a volunteer 

fire department at http://santamargaritafiredept.org/.  On June 7, 2016, the Cayucos Fire 
Protection District requested voter approval to increase its parcel tax to help improve staffing 
levels.  The tax initiative did not pass, and the District continues to operate with staffing that is 
part-time.  In comparison to these Districts, a determination that a population of 1,946 can be 
accommodated by volunteer / part-time personnel is reasonable.  

 
Fire Station – Emergency Generator 

 
The existing cost estimate for completion of the Fire Station is $580,000.  The County’s 

Public Facilities Funding Plan has not historically distinguished between expansions for housing 
versus the emergency generator.  Since NFPA Standard 110 does not distinguish between 
volunteer/ part-time fire departments and full-time fire departments, it is more reasonable to 
conclude that new development’s share of completing the emergency generator component of 
the fire station is 70.5% (i.e. 32.5% of the completed structure before accounting for land costs 
and considering populations that can be served by volunteer / part-time departments). 

 
It should be noted that the emergency generator will also provide power to the 

District’s administrative office and the District building leased to the County Sheriff.  Temporary 
generators to those facilities could alternatively be connected through existing wiring with 
modest and relatively inexpensive efforts compared to the $100,000 estimate for a permanent 

April 12, 2017 - Page 53 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24

http://santamargaritafiredept.org/


14 
 

generator and automatic power switches required as part of NFPA 110.   Based on a cost 
estimate from an electrical contractor who maintains other District facilities, the cost for 
establishing wiring to accept a temporary generator is estimated at less than $10,000.  While 
this cost is relatively negligible, at such time that the Board of Directors approves funding for 
the emergency generator, $10,000 of costs will be allocated as non-PFF costs prior to the 70.5% 
allocation allocable to PFF’s. 

 
In summary, the relationship between new development in Oceano and use of the PFF’s 

for completing the Fire Station is reasonable, including allocating the costs of completing the 
Fire Station to new development.  

 
 

Fire Engines 
 
Attachment “C” includes the engines and major equipment provided by the District to 

FCFA with approval of the JPA with the cities of Arroyo Grande and Grover Beach.  The Type 1 
and Type 4 (Patrol) engines identified in Section 3 of this report will reflect an increase in 
equipment that is approximately equal to the increase in population.  In other words, the 
existing engines and apparatus represented about 2/3rds of the estimated needs with a build-
out population; thus the new development could be obligated to about 1/3 of overall 
equipment needs.  The population ratios of 67.5% : 32.5% are reasonably close to the 
equipment ratios. Therefore, there is a reasonable relationship between the new development 
in Oceano and the use of the PFF’s for new fire engines. 

 
Since the District will have insufficient PFF’s to fund additional fire engines prior to the 

County’s 2020 Public Facilities Financing Plan, the District should update its eligible uses for the 
PFF’s after the FCFA has completed its strategic plan, future equipment needs, and cost 
estimates.  

 
  

April 12, 2017 - Page 54 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



15 
 

Fee Revenue Estimates 
 
Without adjusting for inflation, the District’s estimated costs of eligible use is shown in 

the following table. 
 
 
 

Description of Eligible Facility 
or Equipment 

Proportion Cost to New 
Development 

Local Cost 
Share 

Total Cost 
Estimate 

    

Permanent Housing for Station $480,000  $480,000 (2) 
Emergency Generator for 
Station 

$63,450 $36,550 
$100,000 (1) 

Type 1 Fire Engine $475,000  $ 475,000 (2) 
Type IV Fire Engine $30,000  $ 30,000 (2) 

Total $1,048,450 $36,550 $1,085,000        

(1) – Estimate reported to Board of Directors 2/22/2017 
(2) – Amounts identified from Attachment “A” (Total “remodel” cost of $580,000) 

 
Step #3 – Comparing PFF Revenues to Eligible Costs 

The following table provides PFF funds in District possession and estimated PFF’s 
revenues through 2055. 

 

Fiscal Year Low Range High Range Increase (3) 
PFF Fund 
Balance 

June 30, 2012 N/A N/A N/A $112,683 (1) 

June 30, 2013 N/A N/A $14,859 $127,542 1) 

June 30, 2014 N/A N/A $37,016 $164,558 (1) 

June 30, 2015 N/A N/A $18,084 $182,642 (1) 

June 30, 2016 N/A N/A $7,171 $189,813 (2) 

June 30, 2017 $12,628 $23,248 $17,938 $207,751 
June 30, 2018 $12,628 $23,248 $17,938 $225,689 
June 30, 2019 $12,628 $23,248 $17,938 $243,627 
June 30, 2020 $12,628 $23,248 $17,938 $261,565 
June 30, 2025 $140,937 $259,465 $200,201 $461,766 
June 30, 2030 $148,078 $272,612 $210,345 $672,111 
June 30, 2055 $361,927 $666,308 $514,118 $1,186,230 
 

Notes: (1) Per Audited Financial Statements; (2) Unaudited; (3) Increases for Fiscal Year 2016-17 and 
thereafter are based on the average (mid-point) of the Low Range and High Range estimates. 

 

April 12, 2017 - Page 55 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



16 
 

The difference in total eligible estimated costs of $1,085,000 versus projected PFF’s at 
build-out in 2055 of $1,186,230 is $101,230.  Since the cost estimates do not include inflation, 
and existing Type 1 Fire Engines have been recently purchased at a cost of $550,000 - $600,000, 
the overall comparison of eligible costs and PFF revenues is reasonable.  Although interest is 
not imputed, future inflation is anticipated to continue to exceed future interest earnings. As 
described in Section 5 of this report, the District will be committing to updating cost estimates 
for the County’s 2020 financing plan update. 
  

April 12, 2017 - Page 56 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



17 
 

Section 5 – Schedule of Expenditures and Commitments 
 
As illustrated in Section 4, the District currently has approximately $200,000 of existing 

fees, including interest, on hand at this time.  Projected fees through build-out total 
$1,186,230.   

 
The District only has sufficient funds to complete the emergency generator project at 

this time with an estimated cost allocable to the PFF’s of $63,450, as shown below, the 
following table illustrates estimated availability of funds for the final completion of the fire 
station (permanent housing) and the fire engines. 

 

Fiscal Year PFF Fund 
Balance (1) 

Use of Fees Remaining Fee 
Balance (2) 

June 30, 2016 $189,813 (2)  $189,813 

June 30, 2017 $207,751  $207,751 
June 30, 2018 $225,689 $ 63,450 $ 162,239 
June 30, 2019 $243,627   $ 180,177 
June 30, 2020 $261,565  $198,115 
June 30, 2025 $461,766  $ 398,316 
June 30, 2030 $672,111  $ 608,661 
June 30, 2055 $1,186,230  $ 1,122,780 
(1) Amounts from schedule in Section 4. 
(2) Revised after emergency generator project. 

 
 The District’s ability to fund the permanent housing is not anticipated until the 2025-
2030 time range, or approximately 10 years from now.  Funding of the fire engines would 
require advanced funding from other sources or they would need to be deferred for several 
decades.  If inflation on eligible costs exceeds increases in fees and interest earnings, PFF funds 
may be insufficient at build-out in 2055. 
 
Fiscal Challenges on Timing with Public Facilities Fees 

 
The inherent nature of calculating PFF’s based on eligible costs and timing of new 

development creates the common challenge that funds will not be available for the capital 
items until after the development has occurred.  This challenge can be addressed in multiple 
ways that affect the schedule of expenditures and District commitments, including but not 
limited, to the following: 

 
• High Priority capital items are funded first. 
• Other local funds are utilized to purchase capital items and reimbursed with 

PFF’s as they are collected. 
• Debt financing is utilized to fund the capital items and PFF’s are used to pay 

annual debt costs. 
 

April 12, 2017 - Page 57 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



18 
 

Each of these common options has its own set of challenges or requirements, which are 
not addressed in more detail in this report.  Since the emergency generator project is in its 
design phase and will be completed in the near future, the following addresses commitments 
that are important for the District to consider prior to the County’s update to its Public Facilities 
Financing Plan in 2020. 

 
Completing the Fire Station 

 
As an incomplete facility, completing the fire station should be considered a higher 

priority  for use of PFF’s than the fire engines because the District’s obligation pursuant to the 
FCFA JPA is to provide a station at the District’s sole expense.  Addressed subsequently, the fire 
engines and other fire fighting apparatus can be funded in conjunction with the cities of Arroyo 
Grande and Grover Beach. 

 
The earliest that sufficient funds solely from PFF’s would be available to complete the 

fire station is between 2025-2030.  At this time, it is anticipated that the District could possibly 
develop additional capital financing around 2022 when the lease of District facilities to the 
County Sheriff expires and related District debt is paid off.  Future lease payments, after set-
asides for District obligations as the lessor, could be dedicated to augment PFF funds or to 
make debt payments. 

 
At this time, it is too speculative to estimate the additional capital financing that could 

be available, but it is reasonable to believe that the District could expedite the funding of the 
fire station completion to 2022, subject to successful lease renewal with the County.  The 
County has an existing right to renew with a prescribed lease adjustment.  Likewise, the County 
and the District could renegotiate.  If the County Sheriff does not renew, then the District could 
lease to another tenant to develop revenues for completing the fire station. 

 
In summary, the District should commit to evaluating the funding options to provide the 

County with an updated construction commitment for its 2020 Public Facilities Financing Plan.   
 

Constructing a New Fire Station 
 
Although it would be speculative to assert that the District may have sufficient capital 

financing to construct a new fire station, the option should be evaluated prior to the County’s 
2020 Public Facilities Plan.  Some of the issues that would need to be considered include the 
following: 

 
• The Board would need to consider whether it is in the community’s interest to 

redevelop the land at Highway One and 13th Street, which was the location of 
the community’s fire station prior to the current station. 

• The existing fire station is attached to the District’s administrative offices and 
repurposing the existing station would need to be considered. 

• The obligations to FCFA to provide a station, and possibly an independent Fire 

April 12, 2017 - Page 58 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



19 
 

Protection District, might be compelling to consider a new station.  
• If the County and District renegotiate a 20 year lease for the Sheriff, then after 

set-asides for the District’s obligations as the lessor, the amount of capital 
facilities financing would need to be estimated.  Rough estimates indicate that 
$1.5 million +/- might be possible. 

• Eligible uses of Public Facilities Fees would need to be reconsidered for the 2020 
County update. 

• Grant funds may be needed. 
 

In summary, the District can only currently commit to completing the fire station once 
sufficient PFF’s are collected, which is estimated between 2025-2030.  At a minimum, the 
District needs to commit to providing updated cost estimates for the County’s 2020 plan and 
should consider evaluating the feasibility of developing capital financing to 1) complete the 
existing fire station sooner or 2) construct a new fire station. 

 
Fire Engines 

 
The current plan continues to anticipate that the PFF’s will fund a new fire engine and 

patrol.  Upon completion of the FCFA strategic plan, the District should prepare an update to 
this Public Facilities Report for revised estimates of eligible uses, the relationship between new 
development and the use of the PFF’s, and a schedule to purchase the capital equipment.  Since 
fire engines are often ordered with lease-purchase financing, the update for the County’s 2020 
Plan should also consider the ability to acquire the additional capital equipment using lease-
purchase financing with subsequent PFF’s used to help make the lease payments. 

 
 

  

April 12, 2017 - Page 59 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −1− 

 AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO 
 AND THE OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
  
 

This AGREEMENT is made and entered into on                             

20__, by and between the Oceano Community Services District, a community services district 

formed under the provisions of Government Code section 61010, et seq. (hereinafter referred to 

as “OCSD”) and the County of San Luis Obispo, a political subdivision of the State of California 

(hereinafter referred to as “County”). 

 WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Government Code section 66000, et seq., Title 

18 of the County Code, and the County Public Facilities Financing Plan, the County is 

authorized to impose fees on development projects to mitigate the impact of new development on 

public facilities; and 

WHEREAS, a portion of the public facility fee paid by each permit recipient with the 

boundaries of the OCSD was collected for the purpose of mitigating the impact of new 

development on the provision of firefighting and emergency response services; and 

WHEREAS, among the governmental powers and duties exercised by the OCSD within 

its boundaries is the provision of firefighting and emergency response services; and 

WHEREAS, OCSD and the County enter this Agreement for the purpose of the 

collection, distribution, and expenditure of impact fees to mitigate the impact of new 

development on the provision of firefighting and emergency response services; and 

WHEREAS, the County will collect public facility fees for firefighting and emergency 

response purposes within the boundaries of the OCSD and transfer those funds to the OCSD to 

be used in accordance with all the requirements of Government Code section 66000, et seq.; and 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 60 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −2− 

WHEREAS, the OCSD desires that the County collect public facility firefighting and 

emergency response fees from development projects within its boundaries and represents that it 

is capable of and willing to use those fees within the timelines and other requirements of 

Government Code section 66000, et seq., for the capital improvements allowed by those 

provisions of law. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual covenants, conditions, promises and 

agreements herein set forth, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Obligation of Parties. 

a. The County agrees to collect the public facility fees from development projects 

located within OCSD’s boundaries and to transfer the public facility firefighting 

and emergency response services fees to the OCSD during the Term of this 

Agreement.  

b. Upon receipt of the above-mentioned public facility fees the OCSD shall carry out 

for the County all the obligations and responsibilities of the local government as set 

forth in Government Code section 66000, et seq., including but not limited to the 

following: 

(1) Identifying by resolution the purpose of the fees and the specific eligible 

uses for which the fees will be used. 

(2) Determining in such resolution that there is a reasonable relationship 

between new development in Oceano and the firefighting and emergency 

response capital improvements for which the fees will be used. 

(3) Immediately expending the public facility fees on the identified capital 

improvements or committing the funds to future capital improvements.  In 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 61 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −3− 

the event that the funds are committed for future expenditure the OCSD will 

identify the approximate date of such expenditure and will keep the funds in 

a separate account to avoid any commingling of the fees with other OCSD 

revenue. 

2. Term.  The initial term of this Agreement shall be one year from the date first written 

above, and shall automatically renew for an additional one-year term upon the anniversary of that 

date unless terminated in accordance with Sections 3 and 4, below.   

3. Terminated for Convenience.  Either party may terminate this contract at any time by 

giving to the other party 60 days' written notice of such termination.  Termination shall have no 

effect on upon the rights and obligations of the parties arising out of any transaction occurring 

prior to the effective date of such termination.  The County shall transfer all public facility fees 

collected prior to the effective date of said termination. 

4. Termination for Cause.  If the County determines that the OCSD has incurred obligations 

or made expenditures for purposes which are not permitted or are prohibited under the terms and 

provisions of this Agreement, or if the County determines that the OCSD has failed to fulfill its 

obligations under this Agreement in a timely manner, or if the OCSD is in violation of any of the 

terms or provisions of this Agreement, then the County shall have the right to terminate this 

Agreement effective immediately upon giving written notice to the OCSD.  Termination shall 

have no effect upon the rights and obligations of the parties arising out of any transaction occurring 

prior to effective date of such termination.  

5.  Reporting.  The OCSD shall submit annual progress reports to the County describing the 

progress made toward performing its obligations under this Agreement.  The annual report shall 

include all of the information required to be made available to the public pursuant to Government 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 62 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −4− 

Code section 66006.  

6. Use of Funds.  If at any time within applicable statutory periods of limitation it is 

determined by the County or a court of competent jurisdiction that funds provided for under the 

terms of this Agreement have been used by or on behalf of the County or the OCSD in a manner or 

for purposes not authorized or prohibited by this Agreement or state law, the OCSD hereby 

obligates itself, at the County's request, to pay to the County an amount equal to one hundred 

percent of the amount improperly expended. 

7. Employment Status.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended nor shall be construed to 

create an employer-employee relationship or a joint venture relationship between the County and 

the OCSD.  Neither the OCSD nor any of the OCSD's agents, employees or contractors are or 

shall be considered to be agents or employees of the County in connection with the performance of 

the OCSD's obligations under this Agreement. 

8. Records. 

a. All records, accounts, documentation and all other materials relevant to a fiscal 

audit or examination, as specified by the County, shall be retained by the OCSD for 

a period of not less than three (5) years from the date of termination of this 

Agreement.  If so directed by the County upon termination of this Agreement, the 

OCSD shall cause all records, accounts, documentation and all other materials 

relevant to the work to be delivered to the County as depository.  The OCSD 

understands and agrees that it may be subject to examination and audit by the 

County Auditor/Controller for a period of three (5) years after the final payment 

under this Agreement. 

b.  All records, accounts, documentation and other materials deemed to be relevant to 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 63 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −5− 

the undertaking enabled by this Agreement shall be accessible at any time to the 

authorized representatives of the County on reasonable prior notice, for the purpose 

of examination or audit.  Any expenditure which is not authorized by this 

Agreement or which cannot be adequately documented shall be disallowed and 

must be reimbursed to the County or its designee by the OCSD. 

9. Indemnification.  To the fullest extent permitted by law, and in accordance with California 

Civil Code §2782.8, OCSD shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the County and its officers, 

agents, employees, and volunteers from and against all claims, demands, damages, liabilities, loss, 

costs, and expense (including attorney’s fees and costs of litigation), of every nature arising out of 

the Agreement to the extent caused by the negligent performance or attempted  performance or 

the provisions hereof, including any willful or negligent act or omission to act on the part of the 

OCSD or his agents or employees or independent contractors.  This indemnity will not extend to 

any claims or losses arising out of the negligence or willful misconduct of the County. 

10. Insurance.  OCSD shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance 

against claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in 

connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the OCSD, its agents, representatives, 

employees or authorized volunteers. 

MINIMUM SCOPE AND LIMIT OF INSURANCE 

Coverage shall be at least as broad as follows and no claims made insurance is allowed: 

1. Commercial General Liability (CGL): Insurance Services Office (ISO) Form CG 00 01 
covering CGL on an "occurrence" basis for bodily injury and property damage, including 
products-completed operations, personal injury and advertising injury, with limits no less 
than $1,000,000 per occurrence. If a general aggregate limit applies, either the general 
aggregate limit shall apply separately to this project/location or the general aggregate limit 
shall be twice the required occurrence limit. 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 64 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −6− 

2. Automobile Liability: ISO Form Number CA 0001 covering, Code 1 (any auto), or if 
OCSD has no owned autos, Code 8 (hired) and 9 (non-owned), with limit no less than 
$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage. 

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California, with Statutory 
Limits, and Employer's Liability Insurance with limit of no less than $1,000,000 per 
accident for bodily injury or disease.  If OCSD will provide leased employees, or, is an 
employee leasing or temporary staffing firm or a professional employer organization 
(PEO), coverage shall also include an Alternate Employer Endorsement (providing scope 
of coverage equivalent to ISO policy form WC 00 03 01 A) naming the County as the 
Alternate Employer, and the endorsement form shall be modified to provide that County 
will receive not less than thirty (30) days advance written notice of cancellation of this 
coverage provision.  If applicable to OCSD’s operations, coverage also shall be arranged 
to satisfy the requirements of any federal workers or workmen’s compensation law or any 
federal occupational disease law. 

If the OCSD maintains higher limits than the minimums shown above, the County requires and 
shall be entitled to coverage for the higher limits maintained by the OCSD. 

Primary Coverage 
For any claims related to this contract, the OCSD's insurance coverage shall be primary insurance 
as respects the County, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers. Any insurance or 
self-insurance maintained by the County, its officers, officials, employees, or volunteers shall be 
excess of the OCSD's insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

Notice of Cancellation 
Each insurance policy required above shall be endorsed to state that coverage shall not be 
canceled, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice (10 days for non-payment) has been 
given to the County 

Failure to Maintain Insurance 
OCSD’s failure to maintain or to provide acceptable evidence that it maintains the required 
insurance shall constitute a material breach of the Contract, upon which the County immediately 
may withhold payments due to OCSD, and/or suspend or terminate this Contract.  The County, at 
its sole discretion, may obtain damages from OCSD resulting from said breach. 

Waiver of Subrogation 
OCSD hereby grants to County a waiver of any right to subrogation which any insurer of said 
OCSD may acquire against the County by virtue of the payment of any loss under such insurance. 
OCSD agrees to obtain any endorsement that may be necessary to affect this waiver of 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 65 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −7− 

subrogation, but this provision applies regardless of whether or not the County has received a 
waiver of subrogation endorsement from the insurer. 

Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions 
Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the County. The 
County may require the Subcontractor to provide proof of ability to pay losses and related 
investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses within the retention. 

Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:VII, 
unless otherwise acceptable to the County. 

Separation of Insureds 

All liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as would be afforded by the standard 
ISO (Insurance Services Office, Inc.) separation of insureds provision with no insured versus 
insured exclusions or limitations. 

Verification of Coverage 
OCSD shall furnish the County with original certificates and amendatory endorsements or copies 
of the applicable policy language effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and 
endorsements are to be received and approved by the County before work commences. However, 
failure to obtain the required documents prior to the work beginning shall not waive the OCSD’s 
obligation to provide them. The County reserves the right to require complete, certified copies of 
all required insurance policies, including endorsements required by these specifications, at any 
time. 

Certificates and copies of any required endorsements shall be sent to: 
San Luis Obispo County 
Department of Planning and Building, Housing and Economic Development 
Attention: Wes Drysdale, County Planner 

 976 Osos Street, Room 300 
 San Luis Obispo, CA 93408 

Subcontractors 
OCSD shall require and verify that all subcontractors maintain insurance meeting all the 
requirements stated herein. 

Special Risks or Circumstances 
County reserves the right to modify these requirements, including limits, based on the nature of 
the risk, prior experience, insurer, coverage, or other special circumstances. 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 66 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −8− 

11. Entire Agreement and Modification.  This Agreement sets forth the full and entire 

understanding of the parties regarding the matter set forth herein, and any other prior or existing 

understandings or agreements by the parties, whether formal or informal, regarding any matters 

are hereby superseded or terminated in their entirety.  No changes, amendments, or alterations 

shall be effective unless in writing and signed by all parties hereto. The OCSD specifically 

acknowledges that in entering into and executing this Agreement the OCSD relies solely upon the 

provisions contained in this Agreement and no others. 

12. Laws and Regulations.  The OCSD agrees that it is familiar with and will comply with all 

County and State laws and regulations that pertain to health and safety, labor, fair employment 

practices, equal opportunity and all other matters applicable to the OCSD, its subcontractors, and 

the undertaking enabled by this Agreement. The OCSD agrees that it is familiar with and will 

comply with all laws and regulations applicable to the expenditure of public facility fees. 

13. Non-Assignment of Agreement.  Inasmuch as this Agreement is intended to secure the 

specialized services of the OCSD, the OCSD shall not have the right to assign or transfer this 

Agreement, or any part hereof or monies payable hereunder, without the prior written consent of 

the County, and any such assignment or transfer without the County's prior written consent shall be 

considered null and void. 

14. Covenant.  This Agreement has been executed and delivered in the State of California, 

and the validity, enforceability and interpretation of any of the clauses of this Agreement shall be 

determined and governed by the law of the State of California.  All duties and obligations of the 

parties created hereunder are performable in San Luis Obispo County, and such County shall be 

that venue for any action, or proceeding that may be brought, or arise out of, in connection with or 

by reason of this Agreement. 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 67 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −9− 

15. Enforceability.  If any term, covenant, condition or provision of this Agreement is held by 

a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remainder of the 

provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be affected, impaired or 

invalidated thereby. 

16. Agreement Binding.  All provisions of this Agreement shall be binding on the parties and 

their heirs, assigns and successors in interest. 

17. Waivers.  County's waiver or breach of any one term, covenant or other provision of this 

Agreement shall not be a waiver of a subsequent breach of the same term, covenant or provision of 

this Agreement or of the breach of any other term, covenant or provision of this Agreement. 

18. Notices.  Unless otherwise provided, all notices herein required shall be in writing, and 

delivered in person or sent by United States first class mail, postage prepaid, to the following 

addresses: 

To the County: Department of Planning and Building 
Attention: Wes Drysdale, County Planner 

    976 Osos Street, Room 300 
    San Luis Obispo, California 93408 

To the OCSD:  General Manager and Board President 
Oceano Community Services District 
P.O. Box 599 
Oceano, CA 93475-0599 

 
Provided that any party may change such address by notice in writing to the other parties and 

thereafter notices shall be transmitted to the new address. 

  

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 68 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 −10− 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the day 

and year first above written. 

OCEANO COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

 
By:                                                                            

Karen White, President 
 

ATTEST:  
 

________________________________  
Clerk of the District 

 
 

APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
JEFFREY A. MINNERY 
District General Counsel 

 
By:  ________________________________ 

     District General Counsel 
 
COUNTY OF SAN LUIS OBISPO      
 
 
By: __________________________     
    Chair of the Board of Supervisors 
        
Date:  ________________________ 
   
  
ATTEST:  
 
________________________________  
Clerk of the Board of Supervisors 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM AND LEGAL EFFECT: 
RITA L. NEAL 
County Counsel 
 
By:  ________________________________ 
 Deputy County Counsel 
 
Date:  ________________________ 

Attachment "A" 
County Agreement Approved 2/22/17

April 12, 2017 - Page 69 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Fire Department

Public Faciltiy Fee projects

Project Description Location

Currently Owned 

Site? Cost Estimate Site Acquisition

Construction 

Cost Vehicle Facility

Portable 

Equipment Project Date

Station Remodel Sta. 61 Yes $580,000 $0 $580,000 Yes 2010 - 15

Type 1 Fire Engnine Sta 61 $475,000 $425,000 No $50,000 2007- 08

Station 3 Type 4 Engine $30,000 $25,000 Yes $5,000 2005 - 06

Total $0 $580,000 $450,000 $55,000

$1,085,000

Grand Total

Attachment "B"April 12, 2017 - Page 70 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment "C"April 12, 2017 - Page 71 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24

ocsdgm
Text Box
FCFA JPA Excerpt

ocsdgm
Text Box



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

Date: April 12, 2017 

To:  Board of Directors 

From: Paavo Ogren, General Manager 
Tony Marraccino, Operations Supervisor 
Casey Stewart, Utilities System Operator, SSMP Program Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #9B; Submittal of a Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 2016 Internal Audit 
covering Calendar Years 2015 & 2016 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board receive and file the SSMP 2016 Internal Audit. 

Discussion 

In April 2015, the Board of Directors approved the 2015 Update to the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 
in accordance with regulatory requirements established by the State Water Board and administered by the 
Regional Water Board.  The overlying purpose of the SSMP regulations is to ensure that sewer system overflows 
are either eliminated or minimized.  This report summarizes the results of the audit, which is attached.   

Overall, the District complied with regulatory reporting requirements and the SSMP requirements to 
prevent/minimize overflow events.  Improving documentation and establishing administrative files is the 
primary finding from the audit.  The administrative files are now set up for prospective use.   

The regulatory requirements include a variety of maintenance and rehabilitation requirements, documentation, 
and monitoring.  The following are the elements included in an SSMP: 

1. Agency Goals
2. Agency Organization
3. Legal Authority
4. Operations and Maintenance
5. Design and Performance Provisions
6. Overflow Emergency Response Plan
7. Fats, Oils, and Grease (FOG) Control Program
8. Capacity Management
9. Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications
10. Sewer System Management Plan Audit
11. Communication Program

The SSMP must be updated every five years and is due again in 2020.  Prior to the 2020 Update, an update to 
the Sewer System Master Plan, last completed in 2009, is recommended.  The most notable facility of concern is 

April 12, 2017 - Page 72 of 72 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



the District’s sole lift station on Pier Avenue.  The concern relates to the proprietary nature of the pumps and 
their expense, which prevents the District from having spare pumps at this time.  In the event of equipment 
failures or other emergencies, pumper trucks could be required to convey sewage from the lift station to the 
South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District while repairs are being made.  As a result, the Sewer System 
Master Plan update will need to address the lift station replacement, if not addressed sooner, through current 
efforts to develop a sewer system capital improvement program. 
 
The attached internal audit has been completed by District staff.  Overall, the District had 2 Sewer System 
Overflows in 2015 and 2 Sewer System Overflows in 2016 reported to the regulatory agencies and had zero 
incidences of discharges into water bodies caused by failure of District facilities. 
 
The audit also recognizes progress that the District has made regarding lateral maintenance and collection 
system repairs.  The following provides highlights on that progress: 
 

• At the regular meeting of March 9, 2016, the Board of Directors held policy discussions on sewer lateral 
maintenance and provide staff informal direction on developing a District maintenance program.  Staff 
has completed 75-80% of the survey to determine which properties have / do not have clean-outs on 
property lines.  Tyler Inc. also incorporated a field into the District’s Utility Billing System to track this 
component of the infrastructure.  Additional steps will include developing a list of high priority 
replacement laterals, high priority replacement sewage collection mains, and cost estimates for the 
lateral maintenance program. 
 

• Field staff repaired a sewage collection main on Basin Street.  The main was determined to have a sag in 
it, which impairs the gravity flow of sewage.  The repair work was important since a new subdivision tied 
into the adjacent manhole and sewage flows will increase as the homes are constructed. 
 

• Field staff also coordinated with a property owner on Basin Street who had a lateral that sagged 
between the private property and the District facilities in the public right of way.  The work required 
repairs on both sides of the property line.  District staff and the District engineer, including surveyors, 
coordinated on the replacement project to ensure that the new lateral had proper flow in a “tight” 
situation.  The property owner attended a Board meeting and expressed gratitude for the District 
efforts, and expressed an overall happiness for choosing to live in Oceano after recently relocating from 
the MidWest. 

 
Other Agency Involvement 

The Regional Water Board is responsible for regulating the District’s SSMP implementation.  The South San Luis 
Obispo County Sanitation District is under contract with the District for implementing the Fats-Oil-Grease (FOG) 
program.  The Sanitation District also participated in the 2016 audit and OCSD staff appreciates their support. 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 2 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 73 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Other Financial Considerations 

None at this time. 

Results 

Maintaining a Sewer System Management Plan and performing bi-annual audits promotes safe, healthy and well 
governed communities. 
 
Attachments: 2016 SSMP Internal Audit  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 3 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 74 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 
 
The audit program includes excerpts from State Water Board Order wqo2006_0003, Section D.13, which is 
the basis for “evaluating the effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrollee’s compliance with the SSMP 
requirements” pursuant to Section D.13(x) entitled SSMP Program Audits.   
 
This audit program was adopted by the Oceano Community Services District (OCSD) Board of Directors on 
January 28, 2015.  It is incorporated as Appendix “F” in the 2015 OCSD Sewer System Management Plan.  

 
 

Eleven Elements of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP) 
 

SSMP’s include the following eleven elements unless the enrollee can justify why an elements is not 
applicable.  The 2015 SSMP Update adopted by the OCSD Board of Directors on April 21, 2015 
included all eleven elements. 
 

(i) Goals 
(ii) Organization 
(iii) Legal Authority 
(iv) Operation and Maintenance Program 
(v) Design and Performance Provisions 
(vi) Overflow Emergency Response Plan 
(vii) FOG Control Program 
(viii) System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
(ix) Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications 
(x) SSMP Program Audits 
(xi) Communication Program 

 
Each element is audited by 1) evaluating the implementation of prior audit findings, and 2) evaluating the 
District’s implementation efforts during the audit period in comparison to the adopted SSMP.  A 
narrative is provided for each element, including a discussion on audit steps, findings and a schedule to 
implement recommendations, if any. 
 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 4 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 75 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (i) – Goals 
 
SSMP Requirement:  Establishing Goals Were Prior 

Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The goal of the SSMP is to provide a plan and schedule to properly 
manage, operate, and maintain all parts of the sanitary sewer 
system. This will help reduce and prevent SSOs, as well as mitigate 
any SSOs that do occur. 

Y R 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 

 
Yes new goals were established and included in the 2015 SSMP Update approved by the Board of Directors 
on April 8, 2015.  
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Are the goals stated in the SSMP still appropriate and accurate? 
 

Yes the goals are still appropriate.  No Changes to Goals are recommended. 
 
The 2015 SSMP Update includes goals and objective performance measurements.  The following are the 
stated goals and audit findings. 
 
To be available and responsive to the 
needs of the public in reference to the 
public sewer system 

Goal was achieved.  Cooperative repair of the Basin Street 
lateral with property owner was completely in a timely and 
effective manner.  

To work cooperatively with local, state and 
federal agencies to reduce, mitigate and 
properly report SSOs 

Goal was achieved.  Updated 2015 SSMP and 2015 audit 
were submitted and ongoing reporting is being met. 

To properly manage and maintain the 
District public sewer system lines to 
minimize SSOs 

Goal was achieved.  Maintenance work completed in a timely 
manner.  Repair of Basin Street collector was completed 
timely upon identification of sag. 

To meet all applicable regulatory 
notification and reporting requirements 

 
Goal was achieved. 

 
 

  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 5 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 76 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
The following table compares the objective performance measurements stated in the SSMP versus actual 
results during the audit period: 

 
 

100% of monthly CIWQS reports are 
submitted accurate and on time. 
 

100% were submitted accurately and on time. 

100% of work orders are completed, 
documented and filed in accordance with 
the SSMP. 
 

Some work orders and SSMP documentation have been 
maintained in the office at the Utilities Yard.  The SSMP 
requires copies of all to be maintained at the office for 
inspection and office records will be updated prospectively. 

100% of any reportable spills are 
submitted in accordance with the 
reporting requirements. 
 

Clarification of reporting requirements for laterals was 
obtained during the audit period.  100% of reportable spill 
were submitted in accordance with reporting requirements. 

100% of FOG inspections are completed 
on time 
 

100% complete for 2015 
12 out of 15 (80%) inspections complete for 2016 
 

100% of jetting and maintenance is 
completed, including for High 
Maintenance Areas. 
 

100% of jetting and maintenance was completed, including 
for High Maintenance Areas. 
 

An annual report is place on the Board of 
Directors agenda each year, no later than 
February 28th that provides the statistics 
on these goals for the prior calendar year. 
 

Annual reports on goals were not submitted to the Board of 
Directors.  It should be noted that this goal exceeds the 
regulatory reporting requirements.  Although the goal was 
not met, violation of regulatory reporting requirements did 
not occur.  Lastly, the Utility System Supervisor provides a 
verbal report to the Board of Directors on each and every 
spill during his operations updates included in every regular 
agenda.  Therefore, ongoing updates did provide disclosure 
to the Board and public.  Future years (non-audit years) will 
include the annual statistics. 

 
2(b): Findings: 

 
Records were not maintained in the Administrative Office.  Documentation will be maintained 
prospectively.   

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Administrative Files are now established. 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 6 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 77 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Element (ii) – Organization 
 
SSMP Requirement:  The SSMP must identify individuals and chains 
of communication. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) The name of the responsible or authorized 
representative as described in Section J of this 
Order. 

Y C 

(b) The names and telephone numbers for management, 
administrative, and maintenance positions responsible for 
implementing specific measures in the SSMP program.  The  
SSMP must identify lines of authority through an organization 
chart or similar document with a narrative explanation 

Y C 

(c) The chain of communication for reporting SSOs, from receipt 
of a complaint or other information, including the person 
responsible for reporting SSOs to the State and Regional 
Water Board and other agencies if applicable (such as County 
Health Officer, County Environmental Health Agency, 
Regional Water Board, and/or State Office of Emergency 
Services (OES)) 

Y C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 

 
Prior audit recommendations were implemented as part of the 2015 SSMP Update  
  
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Is the SSMP up to date with agency organization and staffing contact 
information?  

 
The organization chart needs to be updated to reflect the deletion of the Office Manager and 
creation of Business and Accounting Manager, and change in job title for Account Clerks.  Names 
of newly elected Board members and staff phone numbers need to be updated and provided to 
the Regional Board.    

 
ii. Are procedures established to comply with the SMMP? 

 
Audit and SSMP Updates reflect necessary procedures.  Staff needs to remember to update phone 
numbers and individual names as changes occur.  Establishing Administrative files will help to ensure 
updates are timely in the future.  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 7 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 78 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 

The SSMP was not updated as changes occurred.  The discrepancies are minor and do not reflect 
non-compliance or the need for new recommendations.  Improving documentation in the main 
office, as previously noted, will help ensure that future changes in contact information are timely. 
 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Updated information will be provided to the Regional Water Board by May 1, 2017. 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 8 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 79 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (iii) - Legal Authority 
 
SSMP Requirement: Each Enrollee must demonstrate, through 
sanitary sewer system use ordinances, service agreements, or other 
legally binding procedures, that it possesses the necessary legal 
authority to implement the SSMP 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Prevent illicit discharges into its sanitary sewer system 
(examples may include I/I, storm water, chemical dumping, 
unauthorized debris and cut roots, etc.) 

Y C 

(b) Require that sewers and connections be properly designed 
and constructed n/a C 

(c) Ensure access for maintenance, inspection, or repairs for 
portions of the lateral owned or maintained by the Public 
Agency 

n/a C 

(d) Limit the discharge of fats, oils, and grease and other debris 
that may cause blockages n/a C 

(e) Enforce any violation of its sewer ordinances n/a C 
Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
The 2015 Update was completed to remove language regarding inspection of private property. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 
i.  Does the SSMP contain up-to-date information about your agency’s legal authority? 
 
 Yes 

 
ii. Does your agency have sufficient legal authority to control sewer use and 

maintenance as required?  
 
Yes 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   
 
N/A  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 9 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 80 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (iv) – Operation and Maintenance Program 
 
SSMP Requirement:  The SSMP must include those elements listed. Were Prior 

Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Maintain an up-to-date map of the sanitary sewer system, 
showing all gravity line segments and manholes, pumping 
facilities, pressure pipes and valves, and applicable storm-
water conveyance facilities 

Y C 

(b) Describe routine preventive operation and maintenance 
activities by staff and contractors, including a system for 
scheduling regular maintenance and cleaning of the sanitary 
sewer system with more frequent cleaning and maintenance 
targeted at known problem areas.  The Preventative 
Maintenance (PM) program should have a system to 
document scheduled and conducted activities, such as work 
orders 

Y C 

(c) Develop a rehabilitation and replacement plan to identify 
and prioritize system deficiencies and implement short-
term and long- term rehabilitation actions to address each 
deficiency.  The program should include regular visual and 
TV inspections of manholes and sewer pipes, and a system 
for ranking the condition of sewer pipes and scheduling 
rehabilitation. Rehabilitation and replacement should focus 
on sewer pipes that are at risk of collapse or prone to more 
frequent blockages due to pipe defects.  Finally, the 
rehabilitation and replacement plan should include a capital 
improvement plan that addresses proper management and 
protection of the infrastructure assets.  The plan shall 
include a time schedule for implementing the short- and 
long-term plans plus a schedule for developing the funds 
needed for the capital improvement plan 

Y R 

(d) Provide training on a regular basis for staff in sanitary sewer 
system operations and maintenance, and require contractors 
to be appropriately trained 

Y C 

(e) Provide equipment and replacement part inventories, 
including identification of critical replacement parts Y C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 

 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 10 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 81 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
The District is implementing the Operations and Maintenance recommendations from the 2015 audit.  
Enhancing the work program will continue.  For example, during the audit period, the Board of Directors 
considered lateral maintenance policy, provided staff with direction, and staff is working on developing the 
lateral maintenance program.   
 
Field staff has completed approximately 75-80% of surveillance to determine the properties that do, and 
do not, have a clean-out at the property line.  Office staff was able to have the vendor of the District’s 
Utility Billing System update the program to include a logic field (yes/no) to track clean-outs.  Additional 
steps will include estimating costs and schedules for a long-term lateral replacement program and other 
long-term capital replacement needs.  

 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 

 
2(a): Audit Steps: 

 
Are the District’s collection system maps 
complete, up-to-date, and sufficiently 
detailed? 
 

Yes- Upgrading to electronic versions is desired. 

Is the District’s preventive maintenance program 
up-to-date and documented? 
 

Yes – new High Maintenance Areas (HMA’s) are 
being updated with this audit. 

Is the District’s preventative maintenance 
program sufficient and effective in 
reducing and preventing SSO’s and 
blockages? 
 

Yes 

Are your agency’s inspections and condition 
assessments up-to-date and documented? 
 

Yes 

Are the District’s scheduled inspections and 
condition assessment system effective in locating, 
identifying, and addressing deficiencies? 
 

Yes 

Is the District’s training program sufficient and 
documented? 
 

Yes.  New job specifications were  approved during 
the audit period.  One of the Utility System 
Operators began acting as a program manager for 
the SSMP in 2017. 

  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 11 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 82 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Does the SSMP contain up-to-date information 
about your agency’s outreach to plumbers and 
building contractors? 
 

N/A – Contractor and plumber outreach was 
deleted from 2015 SSMP Update since the County 
of San Luis Obispo has land use and permitting 
authority.  The District inspects all facilities 
constructed that are the responsibility of the 
District. 

Has the District conducted or 
participated in any outreach activities to 
plumbers and building contractors? 
 

N/A – Contractor and plumber outreach was 
deleted from 2015 SSMP Update since the County 
of San Luis Obispo has land use and permitting 
authority. The District inspects all facilities 
constructed that are the responsibility of the 
District. 

Are the District’s equipment and part 
inventory sufficient and documented? 
 

Yes - Update done annually and due to the limited 
nature of the inventory a more frequent update is 
not necessary.  
 
Note:  Replacement pumps for the Pier Avenue lift 
station are expensive and proprietary.  Using 
pumper trucks during emergencies and/or 
equipment failures may be required.  System 
capacity is addressed in Element 8.   
 

 
 
2(b): Findings: 

 
The District complied with Operations and Maintenance requirements.  Upgrading maps and other record 
keeping into electronic format is ongoing.   

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   
 
N/A 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 12 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 83 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Element (v) - Design and Performance Provisions 
SSMP Requirement Were Prior 

Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Design and construction standards and specifications for the 
installation of new sanitary sewer systems, pump stations 
and other appurtenances; and for the rehabilitation and 
repair of existing sanitary sewer systems 

n/a C 

(b) Procedures and standards for inspecting and testing the 
installation of new sewers, pumps, and other appurtenances 
and for rehabilitation and repair projects 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings:  N/A 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Are design and construction standards, as well as standards for inspection and 
testing of new and rehabilitated facilities, sufficiently comprehensive and up-to-
date?  Yes – same as prior audit 

 
ii. Are the District’s conditions on new development sufficient and up-to-date when 

modifications to the District’s system are needed to provide service to the 
development?  Yes – same as prior audit. 

 
2(b): Findings: 
 

The District’s standards are up to date and sufficient and the conditions on new development are up to 
date and sufficient. In addition, since the County of San Luis Obispo issues building permits and 
encroachment permits in County maintained roads, the support of the County is available if construction 
issues develop.   
 
During the audit period, a new tract tied into an existing manhole.  Staff evaluated the existing collection 
line, determined that it has a sag, and repaired.  The District engineer provided assistance to determine 
adequate fall existed to perform repairs.  Other examples include ensuring that non-standard laterals are 
repaired or replaced as new development occurs, especially when secondary dwelling units are developed. 
 

2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  N/A 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 13 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 84 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (vi) - Overflow Emergency Response Plan 
 
SSMP Requirement:  Each Enrollee shall develop and implement an 
overflow emergency response plan that identifies  measures to 
protect public health and the environment. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Proper notification procedures so that the primary 
responders and regulatory agencies are informed of all SSOs 
in a timely manner 

n/a C 

(b) A program to ensure an appropriate response to all overflows n/a C 
(c) Procedures to ensure prompt notification to appropriate 

regulatory agencies and other potentially affected entities 
(e.g. health agencies, Regional Water Boards, water 
suppliers, etc.) of all SSOs that potentially affect public 
health or reach the waters of the State in accordance with 
the MRP.  All SSOs shall be reported in accordance with this 
MRP, the California Water Code, other State Law, and other 
applicable Regional Water Board WDRs or NPDES permit 
requirements.  The SSMP should identify the officials who 
will receive immediate notification 

Yes C 

(d) Procedures to ensure that appropriate staff and contractor 
personnel are aware of and follow the Emergency Response 
Plan and are appropriately trained 

Yes C 

(e) Procedures to address emergency operations, such as traffic 
and crowd control and other necessary response activities Yes C 

(f) A program to ensure that all reasonable steps are taken to 
contain and prevent the discharge of untreated and partially 
treated wastewater to waters of the United States and to 
minimize or correct any adverse impact on the environment 
resulting from the SSOs, including such accelerated or 
additional monitoring as may be necessary to determine the 
nature and impact of the discharge 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
Prior audit findings focused on the development of comprehensive procedures to augment the OERP.  
Staff, however, is utilizing United States Department of Transportation Guidebook for emergency response 
procedures and the Work Area Traffic Control  
 
 
Handbook (WATCH) prepared by the Southern California Chapter of the American Public Works 
Association.  As a result, utilizing the industry guidance materials instead of additional District detailed 
procedures was deemed preferable.  In addition, Attachment “A” in the SSMP is the State Water Board’s 
Monitoring and Reporting requirements and Appendix “C” provides the incident report requirements, 

Agenda Item 9B - Page 14 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 85 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



which together with the industry guidelines noted, provides sufficient guidance in responding to overflows 
and other possible emergency actions. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information on its Overflow 
Emergency Response Plan? Yes 

 
ii. Considering the District’s information, is the Overflow Emergency Response 

Plan effective in handling SSO’s?  Yes 
 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 

Overall, the operating staff does have procedures, are knowledgeable of their response requirements, and 
is utilizing industry guidelines as needed. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Done. 
 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 15 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 86 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (vii) - FOG Control Program 
SSMP Requirement:  The Enrollee must prepare and implement a 
FOG source control program to reduce the amount of these 
substances discharged to the sanitary sewer system 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) An implementation plan and schedule for a public education 
outreach program that promotes proper disposal of FOG n/a C 

(b) A plan and schedule for the disposal of FOG generated within 
the sanitary sewer system service area.  This may include a 
list of acceptable disposal facilities and/or additional facilities 
needed to adequately dispose of FOG generated within a 
sanitary sewer system service area 

n/a C 

(c) The legal authority to prohibit discharges to the system and 
identify measures to prevent SSOs and blockages caused by 
FOG 

n/a C 

(d) Requirements to install grease removal devices (such as traps 
or interceptors), design standards for the removal devices, 
maintenance requirements, BMP requirements, record 
keeping and reporting requirements 

n/a C 

(e) Authority to inspect grease producing facilities, enforcement 
authorities, and whether the Enrollee has sufficient staff to 
inspect and enforce the FOG ordinance 

n/a C 

(f) An identification of sanitary sewer system sections subject to 
FOG blockages and establishment of a cleaning maintenance 
schedule for each section 

n/a C 

(g) Development and implementation of source control 
measures for all sources of FOG discharged to the sanitary 
sewer system for each section identified above 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 

Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: n/a 
 
 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 16 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 87 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 

 
2(a): Audit Steps: 

 
i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information on its FOG control 

program? Yes, including through inspection conducted by staff of 
the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District. 

 
ii. Is the FOG control program effective? Yes – Zero Notices of Violation 

occurred during the audit period. 
 
 

2(b): Findings: none 
 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a

Agenda Item 9B - Page 17 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 88 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
 
Element (viii) - System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan 
 
SSMP Requirement:  The Enrollee shall prepare and implement a 
capital improvement plan (CIP) that will provide hydraulic capacity 
of key sanitary sewer system elements for dry weather peak flow 
conditions, as well as the appropriate design storm or wet weather 
event. 

Were Prior 
Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

(a) Evaluation: Actions needed to evaluate those portions of the 
sanitary sewer system that are experiencing or contributing 
to an SSO discharge caused by hydraulic deficiency.  The 
evaluation must provide estimates of peak flows (including 
flows from SSOs that escape from the system) associated 
with conditions similar to those causing overflow events, 
estimates of the capacity of key system components, 
hydraulic deficiencies (including components of the system 
with limiting capacity) and the major sources that contribute 
to the peak flows associated with overflow events 

n/a C 

(b) Design Criteria: Where design criteria do not exist or are 
deficient, undertake the evaluation identified in (a) above to 
establish appropriate design criteria 

n/a C 

(c) Capacity Enhancement Measures: The steps needed to 
establish a short- and long-term CIP to address identified 
hydraulic deficiencies, including prioritization, alternatives 
analysis, and schedules.  The CIP may include increases in 
pipe size, I/I reduction programs, increases and redundancy 
in pumping capacity, and storage facilities.  The CIP shall 
include an implementation schedule and shall identify 
sources of funding 

n/a C 

(d) Schedule: The Enrollee shall develop a schedule of 
completion dates for all portions of the capital improvement 
program developed in (a)-(c) above.  This schedule shall be 
reviewed and updated consistent with the SSMP review and 
update requirements as described in Section D. 14 

n/a C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
N/A 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 18 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 89 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its 
capacity assessment? Yes, see below. 

 
ii. Has the District completed a capacity assessment and identified and 

addressed any hydraulic deficiencies in the system? Yes; no hydraulic 
deficiencies identified. 

 
2(b): Findings: 

 
These audit findings are consistent with the 2015 audit, which follows.   
 
In the 2010 SSMP, the engineering consultant provided a “Technical Memorandum Wastewater Collection 
System Study” dated September 16, 2009. In that technical memorandum, it states “At this time, there are 
no identified system capacity concerns and therefore no capital improvement projects are recommended.” 
The District continues to rely upon this Technical Memorandum. Prior to the 2020 SSMP update, an update 
of the 2009 Technical Memorandum should be completed. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
Within 5 year horizon for the next SSMP update, the system capacity analysis should be updated. 
 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 19 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 90 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Element (ix) - Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications 
 
SSMP Requirement Were Prior 

Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

Maintain relevant information that can be used to establish and 
prioritize appropriate SSMP activities n/a C 

Monitor the implementation and, where appropriate, measure the 
effectiveness of each element of the SSMP n/a C 

Assess the success of the preventative maintenance program n/a C 
Update program elements, as appropriate, based on monitoring or 
performance evaluations Yes C 

Identify and illustrate SSO trends, including: frequency, location, and 
volume Yes C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its data collection and 
organization? Yes, Administrative files need to be established. 

 
ii. Is the District’s data collection and organization sufficient to evaluate the 

effectiveness of your SSMP?  Overall Yes.  Documentation of cleaning and 
inspection of laterals will be established. 

 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 
New High Maintenance Areas have been identified and will be included in the maps prepared by 
the District Engineer. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 9B - Page 20 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 91 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

Element (x) - SSMP Program Audits 
 
SSMP Requirement Were Prior 

Audit Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The Enrollee shall conduct periodic internal audits, appropriate to the 
size of the system and the number of SSOs.  At a minimum, these 
audits must occur every two years and a report must be prepared 
and kept on file.  This audit shall focus on evaluating the 
effectiveness of the SSMP and the Enrollee’s compliance with the 
SSMP requirements identified in this subsection (D.13), including 
identification of any deficiencies in the SSMP and steps to correct 
them. 

Yes C 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
Implementation of prior audit findings were substantially complete.  Each element of this audit identifies 
which items continue to be work in progress.  Primarily, maintaining records in the District’s Administrative 
Office, in addition to the Field Office, was not completed during the audit period but us now complete for 
prospective use.   
 
Since it is appropriate to conduct the audits and related SSMP activities based on the size of the system 
and number of SSO’s, the various recommendations included in the audit often exceed the basic 
regulatory requirements.  Nevertheless, continuous enhancements support effective program 
implementation and will be continued. 
 
Lastly, a new audit program was incorporated into the 2015 SSMP update, as recommended. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 

Are the District’s audits being completed in a timely manner with sufficient detail and 
findings to ensure that the SSMP is updated in a timely manner and that any changes to 
the District’s policies, procedures and practices are implemented in a timely manner? 

 
Yes 

 
Will this SSMP Audit be submitted with the Annual Report to the Regional Water Board 
by March 15?  No, the Audit was submitted on April 7, 2017. 

  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 21 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 92 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

2(b): Findings: 
 

Although continuous improvements are recommended, the District is complying with SSMP requirements, 
SSO response requirements, and the overall requirements of the SSMP. 

 
2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.   

 
No audit related recommendations.  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 22 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 93 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
Element (xi) - Communication Program 
SSMP Requirement Were Prior Audit 

Findings 
Implemented? 

(y/n) 

Current 
Findings 
(C/NC/R) 

The Enrollee shall communicate on a regular basis with the public 
on the development, implementation, and performance of its 
SSMP.  The communication system shall provide the public the 
opportunity to provide input to the Enrollee as the program is 
developed and implemented 

Yes C 

The Enrollee shall also create a plan of communication with 
systems that are tributary and/or satellite to the Enrollee’s 
sanitary sewer system 

n/a n/a 

Findings:   C = Compliant   NC = Non-Compliant    R = Recommendations 
 
 
Part One:  Implementation of Prior Audit Findings: 
 
The 2015 Audit included 3 public hearings 1) An Update to the SSMP Audit Guidelines, 2) Submittal of the 
2015 Internal Audit (for the two years ending December 31, 2014) and 3) Approval of the 2015 SSMP 
Update. 
 
Part Two:  Comparison to Current SSMP 
 

2(a): Audit Steps: 
 
i. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its public outreach activities? 

Yes – Information is provided to FOG customers and any overflows from private 
property.  The SSMP was not posted to the website but is now posted. 

 
ii. Does the District maintain up-to-date information about its communications with 

satellite and tributary agencies? Yes.  The FOG program is coordinated with SSLOCSD 
and emergency events are coordinated, including an overflow during the audit period 
reported by OCSD but resulting from SSLOCSD. 

 
 
iii. Does the District effectively communicated with the public and other agencies 

about the SSMP, and address feedback? Yes, SSMP updates provided to the 
Regional Board. 

 
 

2(b): Findings:  Did not post to the web (other than on the agenda items). 
 

2(c): Schedule to Implement Recommendations, if any.  n/a 
  

Agenda Item 9B - Page 23 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 94 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
Exhibit “A” – 2016 Summary of Audit Findings 

 
 

The following is a summary of the SSMP Audit findings: 
 
 3 FOG Customers missed one of two semi-annual inspections.  Staff will set up a system to monitor 

inspections of the South San Luis Obispo County Sanitation District to monitor more closely.  Zero 
Notices of Violation occurred during the audit period for customer non-compliance with FOG 
requirements. 

 The District’s SSMP includes a goal for staff to report to the Board each year the status of Objective 
Performance Measurements from the prior year (for the years between Bi-annual internal audits).  
The goal was not met in 2016 for calendar year 2015.  The goal is not a regulatory reporting 
requirements.  No further action needed.  Staff will include the annual report (in even number 
years for the prior odd numbered calendar year) as part of an operations report on the Board 
agenda in future even numbered calendar years. 

 The District’s Administrative files were not established after the 2015 SSMP update.  Those files 
are now set-up for use progressively. 

 Update the District’s organization chart were needed as a result of the deletion of the Office 
Manager Position, creation of the Business and Accounting Manager Position, changes in Account 
Clerks to Account Administrators; Changes are now done. 

 Update the contact information for District staff; Changes are now done. 

 The District has not completed a comprehensive Capital Improvement Program for the sewer 
system.  Work is ongoing and based on Board direction in 2016, the current focus is the lateral 
replacement program. 

 Map updates to reflect the new High Maintenance Areas are needed from District Engineer; to be 
completed by 6/1/2017. 

 Maintenance records form on lateral cleaning need to be added to the jetting program; Form has 
been created and will be used progressively. 

 Generate a comprehensive Rehabilitation and Replacement Plan; still required and identified as a 
2015 District goal as a “pro-forma.” 

 Add the current version of the SSMP to the District’s website; Now Done. 

 
 

Agenda Item 9B - Page 24 of 24April 12, 2017 - Page 95 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
1655  Front Street,  P.O. Box 599,  Oceano, CA 93475 

(805) 481-6730        FAX (805) 481-6836 

 

 

Date: April 12, 2017 

To:   Board of Directors 

From: Carey Casciola, Business and Accounting Manager 

Subject: Agenda Item #9C – Review of the District’s Budget Status as of March 31, 2017 and authorize the 
General Manager to issue purchase orders to replace the HVAC ($13,159) unit, meter reading 
equipment ($9,740) and provide an upgrade the District’s website ($9,500). 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that your Board: 

1. Review and discuss the District’s budget status as of March 31, 2017 and provide direction to staff as 
you deem appropriate. 
 

2. Authorize the General Manager to issue a purchase order to Knecht’s in the amount of $13,159 to 
replace the HVAC unit at 1655 Front St. 
 

3. Authorize the General Manager to issue a purchase order to Elecsys in the amount of $9,740 to replace 
the “Hand Held” units used for meter reading. 
 

4. Authorize the General Manager to issue a purchase order to “Everywhere Right Now, Inc.” in the 
amount of $9,500 to upgrade the District’s website.  

Discussion 

The attached worksheets have been prepared to review the status of this year’s budget.  They have been 
designed to include the following: 

 Current fiscal year adopted budget 
 Current fiscal year actual revenues and expenditures as of March 31, 2017 
 Projected revenues and expenditures 
 Estimated budget variances (the difference between the adopted budget and year-end estimates) 
 2017-2018 fiscal year adopted budget 
 Chronology of Budget Actions 

Agenda Item 9C - Page 1 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 96 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Overall, the 3rd quarter budget update as of March 31, 2017 illustrates that all funds are tracking consistent with 
budget.  In addition, the “Anticipated Equipment Replacement / CIP Priorities” listed below can be funded 
without the need for budget adjustments.  The budget results at this time illustrate that the District is 
successfully managing the strategy of using budget savings generated during the first three quarters to fund 
specific priorities identified during the year. 

In reviewing the detailed worksheets, some items are noteworthy to review and may warrant considering 
relatively minor adjustments to the fiscal year 2017-18 budget, which was previously approved as part of a two 
year budget action on August 24, 2016. 

General Fund 

In reviewing the General Funds revenue and expenses there are a few items of significance.   

• Expenditures items are listed below. 
 

• Revenues are consistent with the budget (60% of property taxes paid in December 2016 and the 
remaining expected to come in April 2017).   

On expenditures, there are line items that are tracking higher than projected.  Overall the expenditures are 
within budget and no budget adjustment is needed at this time.   

• The need for information technology support has exceeded the $5,000 that was originally budgeted, due 
to ongoing network issues which include the recent purchase of a server and router and the related 
labor costs.  This may be an indication for the replacement of older technology at both the office and 
yard.  It is projected that by the end of the fourth quarter the information technology expense will reach 
$11,000.  
 

• Board member training/travel expense because we paid for the California Special Districts Association 
Leadership Conference. We were granted a scholarship by CSDA and will be reimbursed once all who 
have registered attend the conference at the end of April, which will reduce the District’s costs to be 
consistent with the budget. 
 

• The liability insurance has exceeded the budgeted amount as it is a frontloaded item and the renewal 
date has moved from December 2017 to April 2018.  This means we have prepaid our insurance through 
April 2018 and 9 months of that prepaid cost is related to the fiscal year 2017-2018. 
 

• The General Fund worksheet also shows three line items with incurred costs at March 31, 2017 that are, 
in part, allocable to operating funds.  They are “Communication and dispatch,” “Clothing expense,” and 

Agenda Item 9C - Page 2 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 97 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

“Outside Utility Billing Mailing expense.”  Each operating fund has line-item budgets for these costs, but 
actual payments during the year have been charged to the Administrative Fund.  Journal entries will 
correct these allocations.  Once this allocation is exercised the expenditures will be as expected in each 
fund.  

Water Fund 

Overall, Water Fund revenues and expenditures are consistent with budget.  Some items to point out include 
the following: 

 Revenues 

• Five out of the six (83%) billing periods have been accrued by the end of the third quarter.  Water sales 
revenues are approximately 4% under budget due to conservation efforts in the community that are 
greater than then 20% target when rates were approved in April 2015.  The estimated shortfall of almost 
$60,000 is covered by estimated expenditure savings of $70,000.   
 

• In contrast, revenues from new development exceed budget estimates.  At March 31, 2017 
development related revenues already exceed budget by $90,000, and due to the overall savings in 
operating expenses, can be dedicated to infrastructure.  In addition, the addition of secondary units to 
existing development in the community and the overall number of units “in the pipeline” with existing 
intent to serve letters exceed development revenues budgeted in fiscal year 2017-18.   

Expenditures 

Although some line items are running higher than budget, there are savings in other line items and the bottom 
line remains on track and with the ability to fund the “Anticipated Equipment Replacement / CIP Priorities” 
listed below.   

Sewer Fund 

Revenues for the sewer maintenance are on track with 82% of the revenues collected at the end of the third 
period.  Much like in the water fund, with five of the six billing periods accrued we would expect to see 83% in 
revenues as these fees are fixed amounts on utility bills and are issued every billing period. 

In sewer expenditures we see a few items that have exceeded the budget.  An increase to the cost of 
maintenance to the structures is related to a sewer line on Basin Street that had to be fixed by the OCSD field 
operators.   

  

Agenda Item 9C - Page 3 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 98 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

 

Water/Sewer Fund: Common Issues 

Many of our expenditures affect the water fund and sewer fund proportionately and are illustrated in both 
funds on corresponding line items.  In both water and sewer the contract engineering and other reimbursable 
expenses are running over but will be covered by the private development revenue that we collect through 
reimbursable fees.  This is directly related to the reimbursement agreements on development projects to cover 
the District’s actual costs incurred on those projects.  The Board policy on reimbursements was originally 
approved in fall of 2014 and will provide a cost recovery in excess of $25,000 for the current fiscal year.   

The line items for the Highway One Drainage Project illustrates that it is over budget.  The budget adjustment to 
the water fund for $71,390 and the sewer fund for $38,478 for the Utility Relocation Agreement with the County 
was approved by the board at the January 25th meeting.  The soft costs which create the additional costs were 
for engineering and legal support and as indicated in the January 25th agenda material, are covered by the 
current year budget savings.   

Garbage Fund 

The franchise fee issued by the South County Sanitary Service, Inc. is as expected at 75% for the fourth quarter.  
The Landfill Savings Payment is unbudgeted revenues.  The amount is provided in the franchise agreement and 
will result in unanticipated revenues of $7,679.  This unbudgeted revenue will sufficiently cover our efforts to 
clean up Oceano as we have incurred postage and professional services costs that exceed pieces of the garbage 
budget.   

Frontloaded Expenditures 

There are a few expenses throughout the funds which are frontloaded and paid at the beginning of the fiscal 
year that look as though the District has expended more than 75% of the overall budget.  The front loaded 
expenses are as follows: 

1. Water Supply from Lopez Expense – Water Fund 
2. Local Agency Formation Commission Expense (LAFCO) 
3. PERS UAL Expense – General Fund 
4. Boot Allowance Expense – General Fund 
5. Liability Insurance – General Fund 
6. Election Expense – General Fund 
7. Membership Expense (CRWA)  - General/ Water Fund 

  

Agenda Item 9C - Page 4 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 99 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 Oceano Community Services District 
Board of Directors Meeting 

 

 

Anticipated Equipment Replacement / CIP Priorities 

After closely monitoring the budget in a conservative manner the above analysis establishes that we have the 
opportunity before the final quarter to replace equipment that is a high priority for our staff.  Below is a list of 
the items identified by staff with the cost and fund allocation. 

Equipment  Bid Source of Funds 
 

Meter Reading Handhelds for 
Operators $9,740.00 Water Fund – Savings in “State Water”  

Roof for OCSD Yard & 1655 
Front St. $7,210.00 

Water Fund 50% – Maintenance on Structures  
Sewer Fund 50 %- Maintenance on Structures  

Facilities CIP – Utility Yard $25,000 Water Fund 50% – Savings in “State Water” 
Sewer Fund 50 %-  CIP  

HVAC $13,159.00 
Facilities Fund – Contingencies/Maintenance on 
Structures 

Backhoe Garbage Claw 
$5,000.00 - 
$8,000.00 

Garbage Fund – Savings in “Signage and Cans” 

Website $9,500 Admin Fund – Outside Utility Billing/ Maintenance 
of Structures 

Other Agency Involvement 

n/a 

Other Financial Considerations 

The 4th quarter results, as of June 30, 2017, will be provided to your Board at your second regular meeting in 
July 2017.  

Lastly, the Emergency Generator Project is an upcoming future agenda item that is anticipated to include a 
budget adjustment and separately addressed in a separate agenda item regarding Public Facilities Fees. 

Results 

Establishing good budget monitoring procedures will help ensure that the District’s costs are managed in a 
financially prudent manner and promote prosperous and well governed communities. 

 
Attachments:   Budget Worksheets 
  Two Year Chronology of Budget Actions 
  Bids   

Agenda Item 9C - Page 5 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 100 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Oceano Community Services District 
Chronology of Budget Actions 

Fiscal Years 2016-17 & 2017-18 

 

Date Action 

June 29, 2016 
Approved the Two Year Preliminary Budget for Fiscal Years 2016-17 & 

2017-18 

August 24, 2016 

Approved the Two Year Final Budget for Fiscal Years 2016-17 & 2017-

18, with the following allocation of estimated budgetary savings from 

Fiscal Year 2015-16. 

(1) Allocate $6,600 to the Government Fund reserve for “Equipment 

Replacement” for lighting maintenance.  The lighting fund 

savings in 2015 – 2016 was $7,600; therefore $1,000 of the 

savings will increase the General Fund reserves 

(2) Allocate the reserves for the backhoe replacement as follows: 

a. $25,000 Government Fund 

b. $25,000 Water Fund 

c. $25,000 Sewer Fund 

d. $5,000 Garbage Fund 

(3) Allocate $5,000 to the Government Fund reserve for 

“Infrastructure/ Capital Outlay” for new flooring in the fire staff 

employee housing.  

(4) Allocate $25,459 to the Government Fund reserve for 

“Contingencies,” which will increase reserves to $45,000, or 

slightly more than 5% of the annual Fire Budget. 

Sept. 28, 2016 

Approved a Budget Adjustment increasing Facilities Fund 

Appropriations by $5,000 for new/replacement flooring in fire staff 

employee housing and cancelling reserves established on August 24, 

2016. 

Nov. 9, 2016 

Approved a Budget Adjustment increasing Garbage Fund 

Appropriations by $9,193.17 to pay for September Clean-up Week from 

contingencies; leaving a remaining contingency balance of $30,639, 

and total estimated reserves of $333,345 at June 30, 2017. 

Dec. 14, 2016 

Approved a Budget Adjustment increasing Water Fund Appropriations 

by $198,397 from Unanticipated Grant Revenues (Prop. 84) for the 

Water Resource Reliability Program.  

Jan. 11, 2017 

Approved a Budget Adjustment increasing the Lighting Fund 

Appropriations by $3,300 for the replacement of lighting and sensors 

on Front Street and cancelling reserves established on August 24, 

2016. 

Jan. 25, 2017 

Approved a Budget Adjustment of $71,390 increasing the Water Fund 

and $38,478 increasing the Sewer Fund to approve the Utility 

Relocation Agreement with the County of San Luis Obispo in 

conjunction with the County’s Highway One Drainage project. 

 

Attachment - Two Year Chronology of Budget Actions Agenda Item 9C - Page 6 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 101 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

GENERAL 
FUND 

 
 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 7 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 102 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



GENERAL FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

0 0 0

Prop Tax: Current Secured 884,860 585,372 66% 884,860 0 911,406

Prop Tax: Current Unsecured 21,144 21,073 100% 21,144 0 21,778

Unitary Taxes 14,711 7,285 50% 14,711 0 15,152

Homeowners' Prop Tax Relief 6,470 3,250 50% 6,470 0 6,664

Will Serve Letter Fee 540 540 540

Firework Permit Fees 1,500 0 0% 1,500 0 1,500

CO Collection Chg: SB2557 (20,000) 0% (20,000) 0 (20,000)

IRS/EDD Refunds 57 0 0 0

Cancellaction of Reserves (Board Approved 1/11/2017) 3,300 0% 3,300 0 0

Cancellaction of Reserves (Board Approved 9/28/2017) 5,000 5,000 0 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 25,000 0 0% 25,000 0 0

Total Revenues 941,985 617,577 66% 942,525 540 936,500

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 8 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 103 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE 
BUDGET 

 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 9 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 104 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

EXPENDITURE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

Expenditure Accounts 4100

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel 0 0 0

010 Wages and Salaries 379,420 287,244 76% 379,420 0 390,028

020 Overtime 7,265 2,719 37% 7,265 0 7,673

061 PERS 47,813 36,888 77% 47,813 0 48,666

PERS UAL Payment 17,851 17,851 100% 17,851 0 22,735

070 SUI (Unemp Ins) 3,038 0% 3,038 0 3,038

071 Medicare Employer Portion 5,607 4,088 73% 5,607 0 5,767

075 State Compensation Ins 14,166 9,683 68% 14,166 0 14,454

080 Boot Allowance 750 750 100% 750 0 750

090 Employee Insurances 38,400 26,621 69% 38,400 0 38,400

097 Cell Phone Allowance 900 600 67% 900 0 900

Total Personnel 515,210 386,444 75% 515,210 0 532,411

Services and Supplies 75% 0 0

110 Communications & Dispatch 5,000 6,150 123% 5,000 0 5,125

100 Clothing 0 2,391 0 0 0

150 Insurance (100% in Admin, then allocated, in 2015-16) 23,515 26,227 112% 23,515 0 24,100

170 Maint: Equipment 3,500 1,242 35% 2,613 887 3,600

173 Maint:  Structures 10,000 3,794 38% 5,500 4,500 10,250

180 Memberships 6,000 6,026 100% 6,000 0 6,150

190+191 Over and Short + misc 200 36 18% 200 0 200

192 Penalties and Interest 0 25 0 0 0

193 Bank Fees 2,000 107 5% 2,000 0 2,000

200 Office Expense 6,150 3,933 64% 6,150 0 6,300

205 Outside UB Mailing Expense 7,500 9,363 125% 2,500 5,000 7,688

210 Postage 500 387 77% 500 0 500

218 Audit - Estimate (not in contract) 20,000 20,810 104% 24,000 (4,000) 20,500

220 Professional Services (AGP, Chapparel, other) 18,500 13,530 73% 18,500 0 19,000

221 Information Technology 5,000 8,762 175% 11,000 (6,000) 5,000

223 Legal Services 84,000 40,469 48% 84,000 0 84,000

226 Annual Software Maint. 13,000 7,121 55% 13,000 0 13,325

225 Board Member Stipends 18,000 8,300 46% 12,000 6,000 18,000

230 Legal Notices 2,000 286 14% 2,000 0 2,000

235 Books/Journals/Subsc 1,500 654 44% 1,500 0 1,500

241 Rents/Leases: Equip 3,000 0 0% 3,000 0 3,000

247 LAFCO 15-16 charged to Admin then allocated 14,552 14,349 99% 14,552 0 15,000

248 Permits Licenses and Fees 1,000 100 10% 1,000 0 1,000

260 Elections Expense 5,000 4,871 97% 5,000 0 0

280 Private Vehicle Mileage 500 62 12% 500 0 500

283 Job Advertising Expense 1,500 0 0% 1,500 0 1,550

285 Classes/Seminars 5,000 2,644 53% 5,000 0 5,125

286 Board Member Training/Travel/Expense 1,500 2,859 191% 1,500 0 1,550

290 Utilities 9,500 7,709 81% 9,500 0 9,750

Total Services and Supplies 267,917 192,207 72% 261,530 6,387 266,713

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 10 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 105 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET

EXPENDITURE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

Expenditure Accounts 4100

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Other Expenditures

297 Pass-Through: Delnq GRBG/Tax Roll 0 2,668 0 0 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 25,000 0% 25,000 0 0

Website 0 0 9,500 (9,500) 0

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 0

($667,893.00) Fire (31,325) 0% (31,325) 0 (31,965)

Lighting (7,831) 0% (7,831) 0 (7,991)

Water (352,407) 0% (352,407) 0 (359,605)

Sewer (313,251) 0% (313,251) 0 (319,649)

Garbage (46,988) 0% (46,988) 0 (47,947)

Facilities (31,325) 0% (31,325) 0 (31,965)

382 Contingency 0

499 Claims & Settlements 0

Accounts Payable/ Prepaid Expense 0

(758,127) 2,668 0% (748,627) (9,500) (799,122)

Reserve Designations

Contingencies 3,113 0 0% 0 3,113 1,180

3,113 0 0% 0 3,113 1,180

Total Expenditures 28,113 581,319 2068% 28,113 0 1,182

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 11 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 106 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
 

FIRE 
BUDGET 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 12 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 107 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



FIRE BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

Expenditure Accounts 4200

2016-17 

Budget 03/31/17 75.00%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav) Budget 2017/18

Personnel 0 0

010 Wages and Salaries 1,500 196 13% 1,500 0 1,750

020 Overtime 500 359 72% 500 0 600

061 PERS Contribution 42 0 0

062 PERS (including Unfunded Liability for pre FCFA service) 4,851 4,851 100% 4,851 0 4,955

071 Medicare Employer Portion 30 8 27% 30 0 45

072 FICA 4

090 Employee Insurances 250 69 28% 250 0 300

Total Personnel 7,131 5,529 78% 7,131 0 7,650

Services and Supplies 75%

077 JPA Quarterly Pmts 779,965 389,983 50% 779,965 0 806,464

100 Clothing 42 0 0

110 Communications & Dispatch 29,900 24,166 81% 29,900 0 30,650

170 Maint: Equipment 50 50 (50)

173 Maint:  Structures 852 1,000 (1,000)

200 Office Expense 48 50 (50)

290 Utilities 5,000 2,663 53% 3,750 1,250 5,125

291 Sandbags 498 500 (500)

325 Hydrant Repair 0 0 0

Total Services and Supplies 814,865 418,302 51% 815,215 (350) 842,239

Other Expenditures

Allocation/Adm Exp 31,325 0% 31,325 0 31,965

Infrastructure/Capital Outlay (Board Approval 9/28/2016) 5,000 4,406  4,500 500 0

Total Other Expenditures 36,325 4,406 12% 35,825 500 31,965

Reserve Designations

0 0 0

Total Reserves 0 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 858,321 428,237 50% 858,171 150 881,854

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 13 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 108 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

LIGHTING 
BUDGET 

 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 14 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 109 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



LIGHTING BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

Expenditure Accounts 4195

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel 0 0 0

010 Wages and Salaries 600 184 31% 600 0 620

020 Overtime 400 0 0% 400 0 420

061 PERS 100 17 17% 100 0 105

071 Medicare Employer Portion 20 3 15% 20 0 20

090 Employee Insurances 300 32 11% 300 0 310

Total Personnel 1,420 236 17% 1,420 0 1,475

Services and Supplies 75%

175 Sys Parts/Oper Supplies 1,000 1,104 110% 1,000 0 1,000

295 Lighting 42,000 26,266 63% 35,000 7,000 43,000

Total Services and Supplies 43,000 27,370 64% 36,000 7,000 44,000

Other Expenditures

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 7,831 0 0% 7,831 0 7,991

Equipment Replacement (Board Approval 1/17/2017) 3,300 0 0% 3,300 0 0

Total Other Expenditures 11,131 0 0% 11,131 0 7,991

Reserve Designations

Total Expenditures 55,551 27,606 50% 51,851 7,000 53,466

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 15 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 110 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 

FACILITIES 
FUND 

 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 16 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 111 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



FACILITIES FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Revenues 0 0

3260 Sheriff Substation Rent 113,940 85,455 75% 113,940 0 113,940

New Fire Station 15,000 7,500 50% 15,000 0 15,000

Old Fire Station 11,700 8,775 75% 11,700 0 11,700

Public Facilities Fees 15,000 7,755 52% 15,000 0 15,000

Utility Reimbursements 0 1,602 767  0

Interfund Repayment from Water 31,500 0% 31,500 31,500

Total Revenues and Other Sources 187,140 111,087 59% 187,907 0 187,140

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 17 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 112 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



FACILITIES BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel

010 Wages and Salaries 2,500 139 6% 2,500 0 2,500

020 Overtime 500 0% 500 0 500

061 PERS 250 17 7% 250 0 250

071 Medicare Employer Portion 100 2 2% 100 0 100

090 Employee Insurances 750 24 3% 750 0 750

Total Personnel 4,100 182 4% 4,100 0 4,100

Services and Supplies

110 Communications 0 22 0 0 0

163 Maint:  Structures/Improvements 15,000 7,227 48% 7,500 7,500 15,000

173 Maint Structures 2,000 852 43% 2,000 0 2,000

Total Services and Supplies 17,000 8,101 48% 9,500 7,500 17,000

Other Expenditures

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 31,325 0% 31,325 0 31,965

366 Emergency Generator Project 15,000 1,290 9% 15,000 0

Repayment to Sewer Fund 113,940 0% 113,940 0 113,940

HVAC 0 0 13,275 (13,275)

160,265 1,290 1% 173,540 (13,275) 145,905

Reserve Designations

Contingencies 5,775 0% 0 5,775 20,135

Total Reserves 5,775 0 0% 0 5,775 20,135

Total Expenditures 187,140 9,573 5% 187,140 0 187,140

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 18 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 113 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 
 
 

EQUIPMENT 
FUND 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 19 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 114 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



EQUIPMENT FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Revenues 0 0 0

Contribution from Gov't Fund (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 25,000 0% 25,000 0

Truck Rental from Water 6,545 0% 6,545 0 6,545

Vehicle Charges to Water 10,000 0% 10,000 0 10,000

Contribution from Water (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 25,000 0% 25,000 0

Total From Water 41,545 0 0% 41,545 0 16,545

Truck Rental from Sewer 6,545 0% 6,545 0 6,545

Vehicle Charges to Water 5,000 0% 5,000 0 5,000

Contribution from Sewer (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 25,000 0% 25,000 0

Total From Sewer 36,545 0 0% 36,545 0 11,545

Vehicle Charges to Garbage 1,000 0% 1,000 0 1,000

Contribution from Garbage (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 5,000 0% 5,000 0

Total From Garbage 6,000 0 0% 6,000 0 1,000

Total Revenues and Other Sources 109,090 0 0% 109,090 0 29,090

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 20 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 115 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



EQUIPMENT BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Services and Supplies

171 Maint Vehicles 6,500 3,888 60% 6,500 0 6,500

172 Gas and Oil 9,500 3,913 41% 9,500 0 9,500

Total Services and Supplies 16,000 7,801 49% 16,000 0 16,000

Other Expenditures

320 Equipment Lease 9,067 6,800 75% 9,067 0 9,067

Backhoe Purchase (Board Approval 8/24/2016) 80,000 0 0% 80,000 0

Total Other Expenditures 89,067 6,800 8% 89,067 0 9,067

Reserve Designations

Equipment Replacement 4,023 0 0% 4,023 0 4,023

Total Reserves 4,023 0 0% 4,023 0 4,023

Total Expenditures 109,090 14,601 13% 109,090 0 29,090

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 21 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 116 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 
 

WATER 
FUND 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 22 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 117 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



WATER FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

03/31/17 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

0 0

Water Sales 1,685,976 1,337,010 79% 1,645,000 (40,976) 1,789,070

Lopez Remediation:  Sales 462,808 365,716 79% 445,000 (17,808) 474,378

Water Connection Fees - Reimbursables 10,000 12,245 122% 25,000 15,000 10,000

Water Front Footage Fees 12,500 28,886 231% 30,000 17,500 12,500

UB Courtesy Notice Fees 4,700 3,577 76% 4,700 0 4,700

UB Sec Notc/Door Hgr  Fees 27,000 22,755 84% 27,000 0 27,000

Capacity Charges 17,500 82,853 473% 85,000 67,500 17,500

Connection / Meter Fees 8,100 5,506 68% 8,100 0 8,100

Lopez / SWP Connection Fees 4,000 16,000 400% 17,000 13,000 4,000

New UB A/C Setup 4,000 2,190 55% 4,000 0 4,000

CYN Crest /Christie/ AG Wheeling 25,000 16,184 65% 25,000 0 25,000

Inspection Fees 200 125 63% 200 0 200

Interest 2,500 0% 2,500 0 2,500

Misc 0 528 0 0 0

Claims and Settelments 3,703 0 0 0

WRRP Grant Revenue (Bdgt AJE 12/14/16) 198,397 0% 198,397 0 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Drainage Project Bdgt AJE 1/25/2017) 71,390 0% 71,390 0 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 25,000 0% 25,000 0 0

 

Total Revenues 2,559,071 1,897,278 74% 2,613,716 54,645 2,378,948

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

2016-17 

Budget

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 23 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 118 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



WATER BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 03/31/17 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel 0 0 0

010 Wages and Salaries 119,891 85,414 71% 119,891 0 126,483

020 Overtime 29,422 9,805 33% 29,422 0 31,096

Standby 12,227 0% 12,227 0 12,227

061 PERS 15,430 9,376 61% 15,430 0 16,253

071 Medicare Employer Portion 2,342 1,263 54% 2,342 0 2,462

075 State Compensation Ins 13,528 4,064 30% 13,528 0 14,276

090 Employee Insurances 19,296 12,314 64% 19,296 0 19,296

Total Personnel 212,136 122,236 58% 212,136 0 222,093

Services and Supplies 75%

100 Clothing 2,500 109 4% 2,500 0 2,563

110 Communications & Dispatch 5,500 2,142 39% 5,500 0 5,638

163 Maint: Wtr/Swr Struct 5,000 1,460 29% 5,000 0 5,125

170 Maint: Equipment 5,000 3,825 77% 5,000 0 5,125

173 Maint:  Structures 10,000 0 0% 0 10,000 10,250

175 Sys Parts/Oper Supp 16,000 9,517 59% 16,000 0 16,400

176 Water Meters 10,000 9,405 94% 10,000 0 10,250

177 Safety Expense 500 0 0% 500 0 520

180 Memberships 1,500 1,559 104% 1,500 0 1,550

190 Misc 250 0% 250 0 250

200 Office Expense 750 466 62% 750 0 800

205 Outside UB Mailing Expense 6,000 0% 6,000 0 6,150

220 Professional Services (Water Quality; Backflow Program) 17,000 11,599 68% 17,000 0 17,425

221 Information Technology 500 0% 500 0 550

222 Contract Engineering 5,000 6,573 131% 7,500 (2,500) 5,125

226 Engineering & Other Reimburse 10,000 22,997 230% 25,000 (15,000) 10,000

230 Legal Notices 1,000 0% 1,000 0 1,025

231 Bad Debt 500 0% 500 0 525

241 Rents/Leases: Equip 2,000 0% 2,000 0 2,050

248 Permits, Fees, Licenses 8,500 6,392 75% 8,500 0 8,750

250 Small Tools 2,500 600 24% 2,500 0 2,500

261 Water Supply - Lopez 462,808 457,315 99% 462,808 0 474,378

398 State Water Project Pmts 914,912 764,628 84% 800,000 114,912 1,057,704

285 Classes/Seminars 5,000 1,182 24% 5,000 0 5,125

290 Utilities 25,000 8,092 32% 15,000 10,000 25,625

Total Services and Supplies 1,517,720 1,307,861 86% 1,400,308 117,412 1,675,403

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 24 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 119 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



WATER BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 03/31/17 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Other Expenditures

297 Pass-Thru: Crest/Christie 25,000 17,322 69% 25,000 0 25,000

349 Drainage Improvement Project (Board Approval 1/25/2017) 71,390 82,501 116% 85,000 (13,610) 0

362 Litigation: SMVWCD 8,000 6,209 78% 8,000 0 8,200

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 352,407 0% 352,407 0 359,605

Charges from the Equipment Fund 16,545 0% 16,545 0 16,545

380 NCMA Expense 35,000 38,874 111% 40,000 (5,000) 35,875

General Fund Loan Payment 31,500 0% 31,500 0 31,500

Garbage Fund Loan Payment 7,500 0% 7,500 0 7,500

393 1979 Revenue Bond Pmts 18,375 0% 18,375 0 18,375

442 CIP - Air Park Dr Relocation 0 849 1,500 (1,500) 0

WRRP Program (Bdgt AJE approved 12/14/16) 198,397 198,397 0 0

Contribution of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 25,000 25,000 0 0

Meter Reading Handhelds 0 0 10,000 (10,000) 0

Yard Roof 0 0 3,605 (3,605) 0

Facility CIP - Utilities Yard 0 0 12,500 (12,500) 0

Total Other Expenditures 789,114 145,755 18% 822,829 (46,215) 502,600

Reserve Designations

Contingencies 40,101 0 0% 40,101 0 (21,148)

Total Reserves 40,101 0 0% 40,101 0 (21,148)

Total Expenditures 2,559,071 1,575,852 62% 2,487,874 71,197 2,378,948

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 25 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 120 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 

SEWER 
FUND 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 26 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 121 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



SEWER FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/17 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Sewer Sales 400,000 326,121 82% 395,000 (5,000) 400,000

Connection Fees 4,000 2,500 63% 4,000 0 4,000

Inspection Fees 200 125 63% 200 0 200

FOG Program Inspections 800 1,400 175% 1,400 600 800

Repayment from General Fund 113,940 0% 113,940 0 113,940

Other Income 1,299 0 0 0

Use of Reserves 35,597 0% 60,597 25,000 23,114

Cancellation of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 25,000 0% 25,000 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Drainage Project Bdgt AJE 1/25/2017) 38,478 0% 38,478 0

Total Revenues 618,015 331,445 54% 638,615 20,600 542,054

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 27 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 122 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



SEWER BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 03/31/17 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel 0 0 0

010 Wages and Salaries 59,051 33,443 57% 59,051 0 62,297

020 Overtime 14,491 3,930 27% 14,491 0 15,316

Standby 6,022 0% 6,022 0 6,022

061 PERS 7,600 4,249 56% 7,600 0 8,005

071 Medicare Employer Portion 1,153 576 50% 1,153 0 1,213

075 State Compensation Ins 7,295 1,910 26% 7,295 0 7,698

090 Employee Insurances 9,504 5,272 55% 9,504 0 9,504

Total Personnel 105,116 49,380 47% 105,116 0 110,055

Services and Supplies 75%

100 Clothing 675 65 10% 675 0 692

110 Communications & Dispatch 2,000 345 17% 2,000 0 2,050

163 Maint: Wtr/Swr Struct 10,000 669 7% 0 10,000 10,250

170 Maint: Equipment 3,000 3,606 120% 3,000 0 3,075

173 Maint:  Structures 1,000 1,250 125% 1,000 0 1,025

175 Sys Parts/Oper Supp 7,500 3,596 48% 7,500 0 7,688

177 Safety Expense 2,500 0% 2,500 0 2,550

180 Memberships 0 150 0 0 0

200 Office Expense 1,000 267 27% 1,000 0 1,025

205 Outside UB Mailing Expense 6,000 0% 6,000 0 6,150

210 Postage 0 10 0 0 0

220 Professional Services 2,500 980 39% 2,500 0 2,550

222 Contract Engineering 2,500 2,763 111% 2,500 0 2,550

226 Engineering & Other Reimburse 219 0 0 0

231 Bad Debt 250 0% 250 0 250

241 Rents/Leases: Equip 2,500 522 21% 2,500 0 2,550

248 Regulatory Permits and Fees 3,700 2,406 65% 3,700 0 3,800

250 Small Tools 650 0 0 0

285 Classes/Seminars 2,500 269 11% 2,500 0 2,550

290 Utilities 2,000 779 39% 2,000 0 2,050

Yard Roof 0 0 3,605 (3,605) 0

Facility CIP - Utilities Yard 0 0 12,500 (12,500) 0

Total Services and Supplies 49,625 18,546 37% 55,730 (6,105) 50,805

Other Expenditures

320 Fixed Assets -  CIP 25,000 0 0% 12,500 12,500 0

Sewer Lateral Program 50,000 0 0% 50,000 0 50,000

Drainage Improvement Project (Board Approval 1/25/2017) 38,478 44,461 116% 38,478 0 0

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 313,251 0 0% 313,251 0 319,649

Rental Payments to Equipment Fund 11,545 0 0% 11,545 0 11,545

Contribution of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 25,000 0 0% 25,000 0 0

Total Other Expenditures 463,274 44,461 10% 450,774 12,500 381,194

Reserve Designations

0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 618,015          112,387       -               611,620       6,395           542,054       

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 28 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 123 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



 

 
GARBAGE 
FUND 

 

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 29 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 124 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



GARBAGE FUND

REVENUE WORKSHEET

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Revenues and Other Sources: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Revenues 0 0

3501 Garbage Franchise Fees 80,000 60,224 75% 80,000 0 80,000

Landfill Savings Payment 0 7,679 7,679 7,679 0

Interfund Loan Repayment from Water 7,500 0% 7,500 0 7,500

Use of Reserves (Budget Adjustment 11/09) 7,685 0 0% 7,685 0 10,333

Cancellation of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 5,000 0% 5,000 0

Cancellation of Reserves (Budget Adj Clean Up Week 11/08 9,193 9,193 100% 9,193 0 0

Total Revenues and Other Sources 109,378 77,096 70% 117,057 7,679  97,833

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 30 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 125 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



GARBAGE BUDGET

OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE WORKSHEET 

BUDGET REVIEW AS OF 03/31/2017 - Q3

Operations & Maintenance: Final

2016-17 

Budget 3/31/2017 75%

Variance  

Fav/(Unfav)

Budget 

2017/18

Personnel 0

010 Wages and Salaries 17,017 14,274 84% 17,017 0 18,363

020 Overtime 2,440 1,228 50% 2,440 0 2,605

061 PERS 1,567 286 18% 1,567 0 1,679

071 Medicare Employer Portion 293 227 77% 293 0 315

072 FICA 799 0 0 0

075 State Compensation Ins 808 167 21% 808 0 852

090 Employee Insurances 3,072 356 12% 3,072 0 3,072

25,197 17,337 69% 25,197 0 26,886

Services and Supplies 75%

100 Clothing 250 65 26% 250 0 250

110 Communications & Dispatch 500 195 39% 500 0 500

170 Maint: Equipment 500 0% 500 0 500

173 Maint Shared Structures 0 41 0 0 0

175 Sys Parts/Oper Supp 1,500 420 28% 1,500 0 1,500

200 Office Expense 1,000 640 64% 1,000 0 1,000

210 Postage 500 995 199% 1,000 (500) 500

220 Professional Services 2,000 5,247 262% 5,500 (3,500) 2,000

230 Legal Notices 250 0% 250 0 250

247 LAFCO 0 0 0 0

290 Utilities 500 15 3% 500 0 500

290 Utilities (Bdgt AJE $9,193.17  11/9/16) 9,193 9,193 100% 9,193 0 0

Total Services and Supplies 16,193 16,811 104% 20,193 (4,000) 7,000

Other Expenditures

376 Allocation/Adm Exp 46,988 0 0% 46,988 0 47,947

351 Contribution of Reserves (Backhoe approved 8/24/16) 5,000 0 0% 5,000 0 0

Signage & Cans 15,000 0 0% 5,000 10,000 15,000

Vehicle Charges from Equipment Fund 1,000 0 0% 1,000 0 1,000

Accounts Payable/ Prepaid Expense 0 0 0 0 0

Garbage Claw 0 0 5,500 (5,500) 0

67,988 0 0% 63,488 4,500 63,947

Reserve Designations

Unassigned Reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Total Reserves 0 0 0 0 0

Total Expenditures 109,378 34,148 31% 108,878 500 97,833

Year to Date Actual

Projected 

2016-17

Attachment - Budget WorksheetsAgenda Item 9C - Page 31 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 126 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



HVAC BIDS 

 

1. Knecht’s Plumbing & Heating, Inc. $ 13,159.00 
 

2. McBrides Plumbing & Heating  $14,627.00 

 

Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 32 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 127 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Price to replace Furnace #1, evaporator coil and condensing unit. 

Scope: • Remove and dispose of the existing furnace.

• Provide and install a new Trane model #TTUE1A060A9361A 60,000 Btuh 80% Eff furnace.

• Provide and install new B-Type flue vent.

• Provide and install a new Trane model #T4TTR4037L1000A 3 ton condensing unit.

• Provide and install a new 3 ton evaporator coil.

• Fabricate and install transition to mount new evaporator coil to the existing ductwork.

• Connect the new evaporator coil to the existing condensate drain.

• Flush the existing refrigerant linesets, pressure test and triple evacuate the refrigerant lines.

• Provide and install new high voltage service disconnect at the new condensing unit.

• Provide and install new gas flex and shut off valve.

• Provide and install new programmable thermostat.

• Start up and check out the new HVAC system.

Price to replace Furnace #2. 

Scope: • Remove and dispose of the existing furnace.

• Provide and install a new Trane model #TTUE1A060A9361A 60,000 Btuh 80% Eff furnace.

• Provide and install new B-Type flue vent.

• Fabricate and install transition to mount new furnace to the existing ductwork.

• Provide and install new gas flex and shut off valve.

• Provide and install new programmable thermostat.

• Start up and check out the new furnace.

Clarifications: • Field labor is priced as prevailing wage.

• Existing linesets are priced to be reused.
• Work is priced to be performed during normal business hours, Mon-Fri 7:00am-3:30pm.

dollars ( )
Payment to be made as follows:

All material is guaranteed to be as specified.  All work to be completed in a workmanlike

manner according to standard practices.  Any alteration or deviation from above specifications Authorized

involving extra costs will be executed only upon written orders, and will become an extra Signature

charge over and above the estimate.  All agreements contingent upon strikes, accidents 

or delays beyond our control.  Owner to carry fire, tornado and other necessary insurance.  Note: This proposal may be

Our workers are fully covered by Workmen's Compensation Insurance. withdrawn by us if not accepted within Days.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL - The above prices, specifications

and conditions are satisfactory and hereby accepted.  You are authorized to do the work Signature

as specified.  payment will be made as outlined above.

Date of acceptance

WE PROPOSE  hereby to furnish material and labor - complete in accordance with above specifications, for the sum of:

- - 1655 Front Street, Oceano, CA 93445

CITY, STATE, AND ZIP:

All fees, permits, calculations and Title 24 excluded

3,438.00$          

NET 30 days.

Jacob Monell

15

STREET: PHONE: DATE:

PROPOSAL
BILLING SUBMITTED TO: CONTACT: EMAIL:

Oceano Community Services District Nicole Miller nicole@oceanocsd.org

1655 Front Street (805) 481-6730 4/6/2017

9,721.00$          

PROJECT NAME:

Oceano, CA 93445 Oceano Community Services District HVAC Replacements
ARCHITECT: DATE OF PLANS: PROJECT LOCATION:

Ocean Community Services FAU and Condenser Replacement 4/6/2017

Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 33 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 128 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 34 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 129 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Handheld BIDS 

 

1. Elecsys1     $  9,740.00 
2. Sensus     $16,566.91 
3. National Meter    $16,575.00 
4. iFlow2      $14,400.00 

 
  

 

1Elecsys is OCSD’s current handheld provider 
2 iFlow price is $4,800 per handheld and OCSD requires a minimum of (3) handheld devices 

Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 35 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 130 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 36 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 131 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 37 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 132 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 38 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 133 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 39 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 134 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



WEBSITE BID 

 

1. Everywhere Right Now, Inc. $ 8,000.00 
 

 

Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 40 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 135 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 41 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 136 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 42 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 137 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 43 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 138 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 44 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 139 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 45 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 140 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 46 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 141 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24



Attachment - Bids Agenda Item 9C - Page 47 of 47April 12, 2017 - Page 142 of 142 Agenda Item 9B - Page 1 of 24


	04122017 Regular Meeting Agenda
	04122017 Item 8A 03082017 Minutes
	04122017 Item 8C Intent to Serve Dorazio
	Staff Report
	Intent to Serve Application
	Intent to Serve Letter
	April 12, 2017
	1. Payment of $ 2,882.94 is due to OCSD.
	2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the County of San Luis Obispo:
	a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts.
	b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must provide engineered plans and submit them to the District for review and approval, which may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will ...
	3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are responsible for providing plans and specifications to the Distri...
	4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Di...
	5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly sta...
	6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the issuance of a final will serve letter.


	04122017 Item 8D Intent to Serve Seals
	Staff Report
	Intent to Serve Application
	FCFA Letter
	Intent to Serve Letter
	April 12, 2017
	1. Payment of $ 1,375 is due to OCSD.
	2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the County of San Luis Obispo:
	a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts.
	b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must provide engineered plans  and submit them to the  District for review and approval, which may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You wil...
	3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are responsible for providing plans and specifications to the Distri...
	4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Di...
	5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly sta...
	6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the issuance of a final will serve letter.


	04122017 Item 8E Intent to Serve Veira
	Staff Report
	Intent to Serve Application
	Intent to Serve Letter
	April 12, 2017
	1. Payment of $ 12,494.96 is due to OCSD.
	2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the County of San Luis Obispo:
	a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts.
	b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must provide engineered plans and submit them to the District for review and approval, which may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You will ...
	3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are responsible for providing plans and specifications to the Distri...
	4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Di...
	5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly sta...
	6. All project improvements approved by OCSD will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the issuance of a final will serve letter.


	04122017 Item 8F Intent to Serve Moles
	Staff Report
	Intent to Serve Application
	Intent to Serve Letter
	April 12, 2017
	1. Payment of $ 1,375 is due to OCSD.
	2. Approval by OCSD of the following items on the project’s plans and specifications submitted to the County of San Luis Obispo:
	a. Onsite water and sewer services and cleanouts.
	b. Offsite improvements if applicable.  If off-site improvements are required, you must provide engineered plans  and submit them to the  District for review and approval, which may also include requirements from the FCFA and street lighting.  You wil...
	3. If any of the OCSD facilities are required to be modified because of required conditions of the District or any other agency having jurisdiction over the proposed development, you are responsible for providing plans and specifications to the Distri...
	4. If District facilities (such as water and/or sewer lines) extend into or across the subject property, you will be required to prepare and submit appropriate easement documents and/or encroachment permits for acceptance by the District’s Board of Di...
	5. You must provide letters from FCFA and SSLOCSD that indicates that they have reviewed your project and identifies any conditions that they require of the project.  If no conditions are required by FCFA and/or SSLOCSD, the letter(s) must clearly sta...
	6. All project improvements approved by OCSD  will require final inspections by OCSD prior to the issuance of a final will serve letter.


	04122017 Item 8G Fireworks
	Staff Report on Fireworks
	2017 Letter to Applicants
	2017 APPLICATION FOR SALE OF FIREWORKS
	2017 Property Owners Permit Letter

	04122017 Item 9A PFF
	04122017 Draft Staff Report PFF
	Resolution Re Mitigation Fee Act
	April 2017 OCSD PFF Report V2
	Section 1 - Introduction
	Purpose
	PFF Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo
	Statutory Requirements
	Fee Calculations
	Five Cities Fire Authority

	Section 2 - Public Facilities Fee Agreement with County of San Luis Obispo
	Section 3 - Purpose & Eligible Use of Public Facilities Fees
	Facilities and capital equipment to be funded with PFF’s
	Station Remodel
	Permanent Housing
	Emergency Generator
	Fire Engines
	FCFA Equipment Needs

	Section 4 - Relationship between Oceano Development and Use of Fee;     Proportional Cost Sharing Analysis
	Step #1 – Evaluating Population Data
	Step #2 - New Development’s Proportionate Share of Costs
	Fire Station – Construction Costs
	Fire Station – Land Costs
	Fire Station – Other Considerations
	Fire Station – Emergency Generator
	Fire Engines
	Fee Revenue Estimates

	Step #3 – Comparing PFF Revenues to Eligible Costs

	Section 5 – Schedule of Expenditures and Commitments
	Fiscal Challenges on Timing with Public Facilities Fees
	Completing the Fire Station
	Constructing a New Fire Station
	Fire Engines


	Attachment A
	1. Obligation of Parties.
	Primary Coverage
	Failure to Maintain Insurance
	Waiver of Subrogation
	Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions
	Acceptability of Insurers
	Separation of Insureds
	All liability policies shall provide cross-liability coverage as would be afforded by the standard ISO (Insurance Services Office, Inc.) separation of insureds provision with no insured versus insured exclusions or limitations.
	Verification of Coverage
	San Luis Obispo County
	Subcontractors
	Special Risks or Circumstances
	To the County: Department of Planning and Building
	Attention: Wes Drysdale, County Planner

	Attachment B
	Sheet1

	Attachment C

	04122017 Item 9B SSMP
	041220175 SSMP Audit Staff Report
	Two Year Audit 2014-2016
	Eleven Elements of the Sewer System Management Plan (SSMP)
	SSMP’s include the following eleven elements unless the enrollee can justify why an elements is not applicable.  The 2015 SSMP Update adopted by the OCSD Board of Directors on April 21, 2015 included all eleven elements.
	(i) Goals
	(ii) Organization
	(iii) Legal Authority
	(iv) Operation and Maintenance Program
	(v) Design and Performance Provisions
	(vi) Overflow Emergency Response Plan
	(vii) FOG Control Program
	(viii) System Evaluation and Capacity Assurance Plan
	(ix) Monitoring, Measurement, and Program Modifications
	(x) SSMP Program Audits
	(xi) Communication Program
	Each element is audited by 1) evaluating the implementation of prior audit findings, and 2) evaluating the District’s implementation efforts during the audit period in comparison to the adopted SSMP.  A narrative is provided for each element, includin...


	04122017 Item 9C Budget Update
	Attachment - Budget Worksheets.pdf
	GenRev
	AdmExp
	FireExp
	LtgExp
	EquipRev
	EquipExp
	FacilitiesRev
	FaciltiesExp
	WaterRev
	WtrExp
	SewRev
	SwrExp
	GarRev
	GarExp





